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1] OVERVIEW

Group snapshot

Revenue

Revenue has increased by
over 82% in the last 3 years
from £390m in 2020 to
£712m in 2022

Energy generation

Our renewable energy

assets produce enougn
energy to power over
a million UK homes

Number of employees

We employ over 1,690
people

Carbon offsets

Our renewable energy sites’
carpon saving is over 822,600
carpon tonnes this year

Number Qf loans

Over the year we
provided financing to, on
average 182 borrowers
in the UK

Number of sites

We own 220 renewable
energy sites spread
predominantly across
the UK




Chief Executive's review

Cur Grcup was in a solid positon cormimg out of

the lo Swin o response to Covid-12, and our

busiriess nas continuad 1o perfom robustiy

throughoui the year This year has seer somes
unforecasted grow!irn in vaiue of certain civisiors

:'D (D

prmarity d wen by e ncrease ir enargy oo

Fern Trading Limied ("the Company” or togatier

with its sutcs:diar es "tre Groap") rargels consistant

growth for shareholasrs over tre long term, win &
focus on s;t@ady and pred ctab e growth, this s

rersied and
et heittng a Group with rore thar

T)

sarticulary ireportant durrg maore craa‘fh.%ﬂg.

SCONOmMIC Conaitions. We have & ¢

)

mature bush

14 years of rading mstory ard ambition The Group

a of seciors over mar

ady lorg-term grow:h for our
ial
we expect to per‘orrm seadiy through market

harehclders We operate :n essariial seciors that

From this secure base we have bee” ab.e o add
Incrarnartal \;xpa sion and d VE"SIﬁf”dLIOﬂ
Mensures way th
new adjacert sectors s2 sertors pro.«de us
with a platfform to contirue 10 expanc i ine with
our axisting straegy. Toaay, our Group Cornonses
energy prooerty Iending, heathcare infrastruciure,
fore and mouse bunding divisions. We hiave grown
to be a significant oresence with'n our Mmaost
sstavlished sectors, prodacing 4.2% of tne UK
solar erergy ana 1.7% of the UX's orzhore wind
energy cutput, ard outding & F261m short ard :
medium term lerdng busimess thet faciliates tre :
construction and irmproverrent of homes :

roughout the UK.

Tre Company's share once delverad 0% growth

over e p?ft L2 mrorths well aread of cur tarcer
of 4% vih per a~nurm The extracroirary growth

Q
1< atirnbu cle LG Odr e7ergy Clv 5 2N, Which Nas
f

SrIficant nCredse 1n tor‘g wrm

energy price forecasts ana erergy forward r

over tre per o, inacda ar tonfatian Tns

increzse In the va.ue of our erwerr:y dIvIS:ON was

ezf IIMENCE 3Cross

nan

aCress the J‘Jsimesseg tnat we
own ard operate, and ind rect employment
provided for hu-dreds more people througnh

cortracts that we nave 1n place.

A reflection on our year
Cur pusness raised £404m from investars this year

cielivered conaistent revendes wihile growing cag L

dep.oymert, rezu ing in L/1Zmin revenus

gererated across the C'fuo (2021 £425my; ard net
assets of 1.888m reztated]

5 for thia year show an
operating proft before tax of £4%m agalr‘.st our

no fnanciat stateme

expecied outcome of a sral accounung

robust performance s

produced by the groun

curng the year Almost C0% of our ousness
coraprizes renenatle enaergy gereratir J a3sels such
as solar energy sites and wine farres, warch grovide
long-term reverue strearms Tnese are intentonally
civersified acrass a range of wonno.ogies o mitugale

aga nst ooor gerformance .n a2 specific secior a~d

coninbute wwaros steady, pred ctable share pnc
growtn, however, tneir vaues: can stil be mpactad
by changes in pncing ana demand. We have sear

consecytivae ard matersl increases in iens ten

ensrgy prce forecasts end enercy “Orwarc rates
glowally ovar tne &st 15 mont~s as thie global
ecoromy recovers from the Cov d-18 pandemic,

or
nd seeks ag'terrat ve scurces of energy as a resulb of

5
the conflict in Ukraine Alorgwath nfiaton, these

ctors nave maernaly ncreases the value of the

junsdictoms,

|
!
|
|
|
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Chief Executive's review

rmarkets and starting corstruction on
farm in Australia, At the start of the year we added
rine gdditionat sites 1o our reserve pows:r Zivis
wWhICh Drings us up to 26 sites 1IN toa f‘ompared el

a large wind

fen sites for most of 2021). These sites rlave
performed alead of expeciations, generaung
EBITOA of £26m (2021, £1m) dunng the year.

Cur
divisior: continue
delivered stable returns

g biormass
e} por[orm well and has
izitton in 2015
leased to see

successful znd well-estatlishe

since acqu
Thes year, | have een particularly p
strong perforrnance at our newes: B'omass site n
Sneuerton, East Angla, which was acguireg in April
2021, proving to be a valuaple additon to e

ous ness Duning the yezr we purchased a Waste-
to-Erergy facility currently unger construction in
Ayrshire The faclity hat peen in development for
three years and will be capable of process.ng over

185,600 tonnes per annum of nor-recyclanle

nodasencwd, comerercal and ndustnal waste whicn

would otherwise be sent w0 iandhil or exporied
This wil generate 17 MWe of

erough to power 30,000 hiomes. It vall

lowy carbor e\ectricity,
be the firs?
‘arge-scale, subs’ dy free waste-tG-energy project in
western Scotland and prejecied completicn date is

N eary 2024,

Cwver recent years, many of our energy assets nave
been urder construct-on which has contributed to

O prcw’u)l/ reported accounting osses This s
typica. of such busmemes

even when ¢

during growth phase
n gererative, because finance cosfs
and accourmr*g charges, such a

5 depreciaticn,

exceeded revenues, Tms division nas now reached
our target size and sector spit

Accord nigiy this year | am pleased 1o report an
accounting profit befare tax of £4dm agamnst our
budgeted small accounung profit. Tris stightly
arger than expecied prohtis due to the maturity of
the portiote and higher energy prices; result ng in
nereased revenue from our energy division as wel
as an increase rnfliation (as explaned below)

sopraiiess
[t

sen

Our proverty lend.ng business makes Lo arcund
27% of the Group andg cor-orises snort and medium
term secured loans o experienced property

Tnis established part of our business
m well, folowing a shiort pericd
avid-19 when we

conunued w perfor
" during C
naly chowe to wr te fewer loans. Our average
wan book was 182 lcans tis year to L4 Sorrowers

Cur lending division has always operaied at
corservalye ican o value levels (below 70%), 1in
order that it mamta ns access 1o valuaole secunty

there is a reduchon in property valaes This strategy

-

ree neepnon 12 years
ago, and it has coerated tnrough penods of change
ceveral imes. The Group s faking a naturally

as served the Group well s

ceufious approac” when assessing rnew lencing

opportunites in light of the changing economic

e}

out.cok. To date, the Group has lent £2 Zon of
properiy loans since inception in 2010, suffering

only £6€min capital wosses. This strong track recor
the result of our carefuir approach it this secior,
due diligen

corprising disciplineg Ce, conservative
ity and willingness 1o

lcan-to-value ratios and an ab
reduce activity i this sector during trmes of
eCoramic unceriainty, We wi. continue 13 adopt
this apgroach tnroughout the coming year.

“he healthcare division makes Lup around 4% of the
Group and is broacly performing well Our

zges busiress. Rang
Lirmited "Rargeford’) continued to sell apartments

retirement vill eford Holdings

t three sites, commenced construction of a fourth
village in Chertsey, and ac
rear Cambndge dunng the year, Sales at the

= are expected to commence in 2024,
Cambridge site is

guired a fifth location
Chersey sie
while construcuon at the
expecied @ start 1IN 2023 with e first sales

commendcing in 2026

Our Fbre division was established in 2019 and

rermrains ar area of growth for the Group, now

COFFpriSiﬂg of aix operatir'g pusInesses. Gur
s, Jurassic F bre, Swsh Fibre,

resident al busines

san nwu
Sns e el
3 8
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Chief Executive's review

Giganet ana Allpcirts Fiore are butiding utrafast
"Hore 1o the premuises” breadband networks T
regicns of the UK which fave beer overlooked ny
largar cperators, Giganet provides cornecivicy o
omes and busingsses across the UK using CityFiore
and Openreacr mirastruchure and Vitnf s @ software
development comoany which has develoced
proprietary software to allow Internet Servic

Providers to sel connectivity cver wholesale erabled

neatworks, Inclidirg Alocints
Lis or‘iy dedicatec enterprise fibre netwerk 1o focus
[ o

on provdmo cornecivily to busire

Southwest of E~gland, and are row onboarding
CUSCMEars G ther neiwor<s, gene ating recurning

revenues for the Group Our state-ci-the-art

retwerks are able 1o meet customer demand &
higher broadba~d speeds required az a res.lt of
more working-rom-home ard ncreased wsage of

nand services, In thﬁdo'ﬂ Verboss has

S00%m of ’ibrv@- w":h a ccmr‘"itmeﬁt to offer 1G4bpes

ficre to un 1o 15000 bus nesses in Certral _ondan

Whiist our fitre dwvisior remans 17 a growtn prase
nec

for tre next 2-5 years we do not ex titto report

an accounting oroft.

Towards the end of the vear we adaed a new

property deveoper to tre Group, with the acgus

of Bhvi or £85 - Elvia s a7
establishad nouze builee- developing rod-market
family homes i wndon commuter towns ard

3¢ Tsa very srmal part oht
Group, we par 1o grow it in a measurea way o

e next five years win an slumrare target o deliver

600 romes per yeer, ncludirg G0 hagh gual by
affcroabie nomres. Eavia 135 a 30rong existing

leade

Coeatn who are <ey o running the busiress

Inflation and Interest rates
The higher rate of inflation expensnced ths year
haz been respersitle for some of the

outperformance aga st expectations i the
Compary's share price FM Treasuy forecact that

i ~flation s wely to be present unt 1 2025 as a
resuil we expect to receive maore revernLe ior the
energy gemeratea wWitnlin cur energy ¢.vinion, and &
Figner value from tre government subsid-es that
serre of our energy sites tenefit from, increasing
tre value of 1nose sites, However, a short period of
kg m‘\,at\om such as forecast has very little effect
on the rate aut which the Group is expeced to grow
Trus s because the renewal 2 energy Sies we Own

der ve thaorr vaile from discountad projected fuiure

cashilows aver the tme they are expecied 1o
ocerate for, typcally 20 years or more [f the

outioo< for .orng-term infiation were (o ircresse, the

imrpact on our share prce should be pos

because it woud inor

e the reverue each of cur

SITES wWOULd xGeCt 1o axe, N contrast to 3

7]

reiatively fixnd cost base

The expected ris ereslraes i< forecast wo

return o normat after a signacant penod of very

ow rates. Tne immediate impact ¢ tus or our

U
x'h

5 expacted to be proady neutral sin.ce
our Group is inienbonally structured s¢ as nolto
EXOCIIenCe sign: -‘-Cant valle erosion wihen nerest
raTes cnange We continue to fake 8 Cauiods
approach withir our lending business where e
rising interest rates are felt more close.y, ang we

nave tha ac-lity © reduce the nur-ter of cars

we write, Oor &l

ter thie ris< profive of our loar
trrough reducirg 1car 1o vaiue ratics ofr pausing
aotivity o certain paris of the market saould that

fee. aporoprate
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Chief Executive’s review

Current trading and outlook
Since the year end, tne Group has continued to
perform steadily from an operationa. perspeciive
and in lre with our exgeciations albel we have
seen share price growtn ahead of target due to the
continued inCrease :n long term erergy price
forecasts, Our g
the medium ard long term remain unchanged, and
we continue to focus on maintainirg a dversified
ousiness that 1z capatie of delivering more
arecictable growth for sharehaolders.

ow'h targers for the Group over

-

The recently announced i
EGL wathin tne 2023 Finarce Bill, witl have an
mpact on the returis generaed from
portfoio over the rext 5 years. This is
ed inthe group france

ectricity Gererator Levy

ur erergy
further

ArECUSS revievw on page 27

Our progerty iending business contndas

perform strongly, with increased deployment in this
secior snce the year end. We focus on short term
loans (our average current loan term is 17 months;
which enables us to adapt to changes in 2utiook
swiftly, we feel this s particuiarly important in the

current econem:c climate

Performance in our Nealthcare division continues
tey De stable and we
abe

tris secior

coniinue {0 rerrain positive

sut the opocrturities Yo improve performance in

Since year end, we have contnued to buld odr cur

filsre netwerks, witk construciion racking n line
ntirue to review
c and incrganic

cur CXiStlﬂg marnagomort tcarns

with our expectations We <o
fslelele
growth suoportinﬁ
strateqy

riunivies for coth organic

i delivaering his

n December 2022 we have acqu;red the nghts w

ree

25m of nghrto usse
).{

3
UK, thuz making the
mobile virtual netwaork operator,

first step towards becoming an

—

Cur mix of bus.ress areas nas develoned over timre
and may evolve iurther over the yveas ahead, driven
by the overarching im pori;arice we place on

olders This

a wraesale

meeting the objectves o
should not be read as
change o the o whics we operate, but
reflection of the role olayed by the strateq.c

f our shareho
ary nd.canon of
sectors | as a

mandate ir protecing shareholcers interests

ur mix of business areas has

developed over time, driven by
the overarching importance
we place on meeting the

objectives of our shareholders.”
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Our business at a glance

Wihet we do
Fern Trading Lirmied ("?em”) iz the parent company
of nearly 320 subs-diaries itocgetner the "Groug”) Our

JfOup operates across five key argas 2rergy,

Fealthcare, lending, hbre and house puiiding Cver

the past twelve years we have built a carefully

diversified group of o
toned to

ocperatitg businesses that are
well posi delver long-term value and

predictabie growth for our sharerolders

1. Energy division
We genmate power from sustainatle sources: ard

sell the energy produced ether directly 1o industnal
netweorks

CONILmears or to targe Mary of our

renewabe energy sies qoalify for goverrmenn
incentives, whicnh rearesens an additonal source of
income. We have aiso utiliced our expertse n
rerewale energy Lo construct facivties for sale or
ongong cpeaerat on Al year end the Group nad

21 sites under constractor.

2. Healthcare division
wWe provice

romes and lersure facilisies to ou

ageing populauen, ans private Fosoitals whch

provide high-gquanty healing
i the K

ervices atios:s

operational =

3. Lending division
Ve lend on a short and medium term, secdred

basis 10 3 large rumser of property p

We also provice dnancing o enzbie oner ou 55
10 buily assets ang other res dent sl and
COMTerCiai Progerties

4. Fibre division

Ve own ana operate thre broadband networks
BCrass vanous areas of the UK We burld the
newvorks and connect them i hemes ana
busimesses to provide our customers with ultrafast
fhre roadband

5. Home building division

Durng e year, we succassfy entered the nouse

ouild g sector acguin~g Eavia Homes wh'ch
strorg rack recora of developing Homeasin a
sustairanie manner The company is a f

roperty developer, mearing it provid
b J Ity

from the desgon

o the engineenng «

21sure tne deuvery of quality

Solar, wind,

. Property lending, Retirement Ultrafast fibre , .
b'or.”asi development villages, private broadbanct across Reader!tlal house
fandfill gas, financin hospitals the UK building
reserve power @ P
Cporaudns! Corsiraot o CpoeaT Lea Joraracunn b
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Our business at a glance

businesses with comprehensve business pians and
strong maragemert teams This enables us to

The sirength of our Groug's strategy 13 17 Doth s
operatioral diversity and the return profile of these

+

ousinesses Our lend:ing busingss provides flexibility continue to diversify odr business without

and strong returrs over the short term, while cur COMmpromising on the guality ©°F our operations.

energy, nealtncare, fibre and home bakding Over the past three years, we have successfully

dwsicrs offer visipiity and stability of returns over entered the fibre broacband sector ard we now

the orge- term. own six companies with exciting plans 1o delivar

¢ Lltrafast brozdband across the UKL

M

he scae of our businessis a key

5
Ws o acguire arge-scale established operations as
well as the opportuniy 1o enter new sectars with

mirirsia. is< (o the whole Groun by selecting :

Healtncare 1%

Sector split’

Wind 22% —.

- Property 27%

Fern's sector
allocation

- Reserve power 2%
--Solar 1%

~ Fibre 5%
Solar 20%--

Reserve power 6% A P Landfll gas and iomass 9%
Other 3%

B B Owning and operating assets 69%
ME Lending 31%

Sector splt s given by value, as represented or the comoary balance sheet of Ferm Trading Lirmied.
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Our business at a glance

Where we operale

YWe are proud that the Dusinesses

within cur Group make a positive

contripution 1o society, from

ger erating clearn erergy to the 4‘
creation of Fornes and tne provia:on

c
2

guasty healtncare nfrastrucluce

gl

& Soar sites
® Lanc gas faci. nes

Fiomast power stalions
f.

Keserve power plants

S
Cur erpertse o exCitirg cpooriunites ouersaeas, ‘ﬁCEuG!’Tg comsiractng

raba, France, Ireland, Pola~d and Finland.

ie've grown our expertse in these seciors in the UK, wea've been anie o use our imdustry knowledge to

sg.an ard wind farms n
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Our business at a glance

Maldng a difference

We are proud 1o operate 2 Group that rmakes a
positive contribuasn to seciety acress the UK,
generating renewaole energy, providing qualty
heaithcare infrastructure and retirernent tiving anc
delivering high-speed trecadband to underserved

areas ol tne country.

Energy
We curertly own 220 energy sites, proaucing
A 75CGW a year That's encugn energy (o powesr ovar

a TilLor homes

~ur comibinat

-

ion of tlechncloges. soar, wind,
rdfl gas

cll, Fieping the U

ssorve power, oiemass ard 3
complemeart each otmer w Kt

meet it energy targels irrespect ve o the weathe

The Ferr Community Fund s a soc al enterprice run
oy the Grouc, which works 1o distribute cormnmunty

funds generated from our wind farms, This year, tine

Fern Commurity Fung haz ewarded £1.4m to locat
cornmurity groups, stpponied 13 local Lnivers:ly
students tarougn our Student Scnclarshig Fung,

a oroviced a winter fael subsidy to 706 residents
e local to the Gro

WG a Jp's assets.

Healthcare

Our retirement villages provide higr-guahty.
contemparary lving spaces with 279
accommadalion dmiis currently in place, and
schemes
over 500

N various stages of devetopment oifering
additiona: accamrrodation units,

A friendly community s at the heart of our
ret rernent vidages, whichn is why 1in our
and &

aevelopments we pravide central facil es

ruD of social activity “or our residents

Lending
The icanz we made curirg the year have
fund the construction of student ace

and much needec residenual propertées,

BEEdp o nar

We continue to exierd .oans o

fleats to erable

=)
il
1]
I

nem to use electric vet
reducing carbon emissio
Fibre

Throagh our 5

- broadband

re division we are build' ng cut the
fipre oohic network acqoss the Ux Four

of our managemenrt teams are focussed on

bButding out fitre optic croadband rerworks for
residental customers and small busiresses, ard a
Afthis ou lding &
connectvity Our sixth s a sofrware development

anc

fibre network W geliver entarprise

company aperatng in the fiore secior
providing services o our gro.up companias
Withir

srk provdi

s division we have olans @ create a

fen
(S

o
)

Pk
currently

nnectivity ft for modern

FEeiNG oVer ore

mg connectivity
properties in the next three years, rany of w

are i1 small iowrs ard villages tnat dont

bPave access o intemet ¢o

ways of work'ng ard commuricating
Not orly are our fibre cusinesses parging

connectvity to underserves communings, they ares

also generating employrrent apporiunines for
young individ_als via tra nirg academies and
apprenticeship schemes, and are drnving diversity »
Telecoms, with cne of our caompan s havirg
moer of innatives 1o recrui

launched a nu WOITen

nto the sector.

Home building
QDur home building dwision wtilises a h gh

proportion of susiairgbie tmber frame censtructic
air zource heat pumps in alt
properties, leacing the way in th's

talls

methods and ins
sector and

Felping reduce carbon emissions,

iiaiihes.

S e

FEALR L

Brbwiny s gk Ry
ey o lotant il fe
e
5
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Trrougn our erergy divis on, tre Group Gwns arnc
operates energy sies whicr supply gas and

elecncity nto tne natwork, a3 well 83 construciing

Ofthe 220
energy sites hat we own and operate, 194 grovids

renewabie er*e'gy g

renewsahle energy, cortniouting 1o the Groun's

¢
Ol

position as one of the largest produce

‘i
(7

re-ewsbile energy from cornmercia. scale solar sites
in tne JK Energy sites are typica
apie prehts fo

Uy expected I}

TWIING arc cperating

to the Group kecause

predictatie profits over fra long 1o,

Rerewable energy sitos generate oower from
sustanahle sources and sell erergy producen either
cirectly o large indusinal consumers or fo the
network. Mary of our rencwable energy sites alsc

qualfy for governrmeant mconnves, whon resuds in a

porion of tne generated energy beneSing fror
rates that are locked ' for 3 specfiec period once
a guatfying site 15 opcrational ard accred tation has

been graf‘fec hiz ras reduced some of the irmipact

of the volatilty in long torm encrgy pr.ce forecasts

AL ew sites built in the UK do not gualify for
PUSTONIC QOVEMIMEant IMCenivies, we are Seeng more

atng ensrgy Ses s a core @
our stratecy and current y makes up almaost GO% of

the Group's net asscts This oart of olr Group has

LA

Did you know?

generated ngher returns this yesr tnan expected
due o market condittons bt craciatly it has the

ole retures over ing long-

55 the range of Group

"Our energy sites generated over
3,750 GWh of power.”

—

Cre w0 the hrgh-guality energy sites we owrn, we

are aole to secure long-term finanang from

mansream parks at comaoentve rates o ennan

CLr retdrns, whiich relps us 0 celiver the

returrs our sharel clders expect

Whi-le our renewacle energy bus ness started Ufe ir
tre solar energy secicr, the Croup has bu'lh
exceriuse across otner adacet fecnno.cgies
ore wind, bismass and andf'l gas,
erve power plarts wh-oh provide
~ver o the Nationa Gria The Group
rom, dvessficatan within 3
ey

saker conaitions for

o from one tecnnoiogy often rasill
on eisewihere Tne x}rr;up alzo
seneft from its scale n this secies

spread across over 22

&

j the sk o Group profitab lity o
8

£ranoral C}\S"‘u‘ptmﬂ

iIf laid end to end, our solar
panels would stretch from

London to Mexico City.
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Our strategy in focus

In adainon o cur JK sites, the Group s devewoping

sies overseas, 0 uasdict:ons that we understand
wel, These present an attractive ocoportunity as they

DL on our sector expertise in countres at an
earlier siage of renewabie development Currently
we operaie wird fasms in irelanc and France an

solar sites in France and Australia, We have several
wind sies urder construction i Poland, France

arad Australia

Durng lne year we acauirad nine reserve power
plants and one energy from waste site Following
construchion, we sold twa wind farrns 1in Finland ana
shorty after the year end we alse sald Car.ngton

n Australia

Point, a large soar ste

Healthcare
Through our healthca

ocerates in

ire division, tre Group

the private Ted<al and regrement lving
ctors Cur revrement wving business, Rangeford,
owns ard operates two etirement villages in
Wiltskire ard Nortn Yorkshire and 5 cumrently

developing three furthizr sies for future ooerat ons

Our prvawe medical business, One Hleaithcare owns
ard operates two private nospital
Herifordsy

i rodern,

< Kent anc
tevel of care
acilities

lire, providing thie very best

well equipped hospita

Snce returning to normat working paiiems we have
3een an increase ir the rumrber of patents paying
for tneir owr reatment as they face .ong walting
asts for NHS treatment. Desoite the [fung of
widespread restrict.ons across the UK, Cowid-19
crtinues 1o affect the acue care sector with a
stressed NHS and noreased ir 07 conrtro

et
measures that remain in place

Lending
Lending contimues 10 be a core part of our busnessy
rovided the Group wath a profitasle and

rative sectar over the past tweve yaars.
=ll-establisned part of

consists of property lending, which provides

oL Group mainly

short-term financing to experiencad professional
pers, buy-to-let lanalords seeking

and deveopment financng,

perty develo
bridging hinance
which provides short and reedium term finarcing
to companiaes

A key benefit of the scale of our Group and of the
ousinezs that we have buiit ug in this sector is cur
aoility to mitigate nsk througn having a large

numier of short ard medium term cans

horrowers. We

spread
cross small orojects to individusl b

e8]

[&]

roactively manage counterparty ns«s through

undertaking careful borrower due ditgence, taking

“Lending continues fo be a

important part of our

business and has provided

the

roup with a profitable

and cash generative sector

over the past twelve years.
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Our strategy in focus

%)

o~ g first charge bass

aCurily over asseis tyoicaily
and ma nta.n'ng conservaiive loan-to-value ratos
rot all lcans will cerform as expected and trose
measures help 1© Tinimise the impact of
pe”’“rfr.dfie issues o an individua: woan Ths's
urther ratigateg through e vaiue that we lono 0
irdwvidua! borrowers, relstive o our t

whichk is currently spread ©n avera

loars, with an average ndividua’ ican of £2 5m

Fibre division

Cur {ibre division ircludes five ogerationa.
companies builldng fiore netwerks in the LUK ana
ore software developmient company

Trrocugh cur resdent al Fibre busnestes, we are

build ng new ohysical hbre networks for

crmrunres e e UK and so far nave bult ot
fore nfraztructure mounderserved parts of Devon,
t, Dorsel, W

Worcestershire aro the home Counties. We are

SOMmerse ure, Hampsire,

aémmq 1o gass over one milon homeaes ovar tne
ext three years

Bulding trese large networ<s nvolves connecting
large datacentres and telepnone exchanges 1 ihe
! efectiverly

placny the copper wres tnat weare igdin the Tra

Cwetri hiomes and busimesses,

ha't of the 20th centur y Jurassic, Swish and

;‘:’”C‘t are veruca.y integrated,

he filbre infrastruciure and also

provder or "ISPT Allooints cwns ibre infrastruciure
anid will onoard other 1593 (o the Allpoirts retwork
ty sell connectivity to the end customer.

Through Vortoss, we are a network n

suild ng &

picy

LOrGon o supply husiness-1c-business ("BLJ )

arterprise connectvty direct to business
cLstorrers Vorboss has instaved over 500k of

n London since 2020 and has

fibre oot ¢ cabes
receniy laurcred a sirg.e 10GEos product to
rmarket, recognising that amoitious orndon
busimesses wil guickly recure more than the 1Geos

cornectv ty tney've relied on to datc

We have seen rand growth in our fibre dvision
sirce 2018 and we expect this divicion o conlirus
to Cecome aanger

Tre Gr
capita. by 2025 to fulilits builg

nart of our buasn over ime,

oup expec spend agproxerately Elon of
Y
i plars ard reach

more cormmarities v need of ultrafast broadbana.

Home building

Cur new hormne buillding bus ness, Elivia i a il
service housebuleer, acquinng land, cevewop ng the
site, a~a sudsequerty seliing the homes to

irdwvidual buyers, These stesnclude a mix of open

market and affordatile ~cuses ard sirve 1© delver
hign cualty asorational nermes The busiress
growing fost with projected annual turmover Of
£250 f

250
within the naxt Z-3 years

m and €

Fouses oJllt per
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Directors

The experienced Board of Directors for the Fern Group are responsible for
determining the strategy of the business and for accounting for the Company's
business activities to shareholders. They have a set of complementary
commercial, enerqy sector-related and strategic skills

Faul Latham . o0 Ly o0
Padl iz Craf Execlbive of Ferr and is resconsicle for the day-to-day runnirg of
business. He s aiso a managirg director of Octopus Investments Limized (C
where he has worked 2nce 2005 0 15 a key supgler of resource and experuse
to Fern Paul's dual role ensures trat this relationshig works effectively and in the
best nterests of Fern's sharehoiders. Paul nas had varicus general mamageme"t
and internal consdlting roles acrass a rumber of sectors and Drings with 2w
35 &

a weath of industry and Bz ADENENTE. .

- Helth Willey 0 S0 D e

Keith 15 a~ associate professor ©F siwrategy and entrepreneursnip at London

Bus.ness Scrool He 250 holos vanous nor-executive directorships and agv.sory
Growth a-d more mature comparies. In bz role as ron-executive
chairman he is retpors.ble for the effective operaten of the Board, as well
as its governance He brngs 1o the Fern pus ness ndependen: commercial
expnr.er& gained from his time - academia, prvate eguity investment,
onsulting and various hands-on ooeraticnal roles,

Peter Barlow > 0 -7r 2008 om0y
Peter has over 30 years experence in international inancing of infrastructure and energy
As a seror exccutve for International Power, Peter was resconsiole for arrarging over
$126n of oroject and corporate funding, as well as bankicrg relatonshyps and treasury
activites. He ras spent over 20 years working intermanormily for HSBC, Bank of

Amenca and Nomura, inancing acquisinons and greenfield projects in the erergy
and in‘rastructure sectors. His combiration of Beard-evel fnancing and energy
ExpErence Over NUIMerous energy sdb-seciors, ang his ail-round knowlezge of
all the sectors in which Fern operates, adds significant value to the operation of

the 2oard as we'l a3 s strateqy forrmaton and degloyment

Tim Arthur o0 cen T Dol L

Tim s @ chartered accountant with more thar 25 years' international experience
as a finance director ¢f both puslic and private companies  aitially he worked
far Price Waterhiouse in Birmingharm and Chicago. More recently he was Crhief
Financial Oficer of Lightsource Rerewsble Erergy Ltd, a gobal leader in the
fundirg, develocpment and long-terr operation of solar photovoita'c projects
Tirr brings exterisive firancial and accountancy knowledge to the Board as
well as an understand.ng of dynamic techno.cgy businesse: ganed from nis

executive postions
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Principal risks and uncertainties

Principal rishs

Menagement identify, assess and manage risks PoTne prncpal risks that the Group zre excosed to

associatec with the Group's busness object'ves and

strateqy. Risks anse from sxternat

which are inferert cormmercal

and from operational risks contamed within the
systermis and processes emp.oyed w.ihin tre
busziness. Gverall nie< exposure iz managed acress
tre Group throughn the diversfication o

botn by sector and geography.

Risk

Market risk:

The energy sector s e penerang
sigrificant turpulerce and there s
a risk tnat forecast levels of mcorme
are not achievaed due lo Charges in
ale emergv prices, cff-take
plaele \ferqrren: ’uh_?:dlﬂw

the potential
ntervent cn by the rfmulritu 5 A.50

3 sk

Charces nGovernment policy
may result in recuced income

strearns wihe the grous gue to
aodm nat er

Operatmnal r|sk

Levels of energy oroducec may
oe locwer 1an antaipalec due o
sLbx-optiral weather condinons
or performarce issues with
aquinmert, wh or may result n
Scant urpaannes down tlfr‘ﬂ.

Fmancnai rusk
Reverues (from energy
aneration)
from the <
from overs

sig

er —fed
=5 dre \ow.m nar
T’) fiuctuatiors

Constructlon risk:
Construct on of the
onger or 5
artcipated do
avaiabiity

=00 n"a‘pr\ iz

M|t|gat|ons

- M vt a Y St v wNd r W AT Y E e R WX A B beF ¥ eI BeRade e dehed et in ava 430 o @ wra v

are gescribed below, alerg with the mmgdt;f"‘
actions we take w0 reduce the potential irnpact of

in the market, iothie risk We alsa include our assessment of wreiner
the Ixelimood of the risk has ircreased, decreased

or remained the

AMe.

Contracis are entared 0o which fix the ncome for a
porucn of the energy gereraied Dy Cur sies
Lorg-term governmert backed offiake agreemens sre
I place, sucn as th rewabie Coldgaton Cerafication
("ROCT scheme, 30% of our 2nerdy income was

34

generaied frorm RCC revanae.
We engage with the goveriment and tre Ofhce o Gas and “?
Electr ity Markets "OFGEM ' G conTibute To anirdustry voice | reasad
witn policy makers wino set future regulatory -egLirements {due w rnarket

‘rstability)
wrorea'ctability of the weather is rmitigated throuch

versifiication of techaclogiss and wwLstion of <1
PPJu\arscr":"'ﬂgf"cro‘f- uncertaken o i3 s
f=

are keptin gocd cond ton and manimise the e

455215 are unavallable for a ongsr peno

Q

ex;aczed o oe denved fro

raovenT et

Tre Group enters ﬁer orice CoNiracls Wit contratiors

WORIE GCPIIGNATE T redUce EXDCEUrS YO NCIEasING COStS b

o change




Market risk:
Expectad sales from custorrers

are lower than ant.c.pated due
mcreased cornpett.on from
providers

A change in pelicy by tne
regulatcrs i favour of iarger
coerators coula impact our abid ty
e deliver ptamf"d developrnent,
reducing revenues ard ofic encies
gained from alarger o
pdm Ha* area.

Construct:on ﬂsk

orzslructon of tne network
La%a lorger oris maors costly
than anticipated due to resource
availakiity or ncreaseo cost of
raw rnateriais

Operational risk:

MNetwork service is interruotes or
unrebiapie lead:ng o potental loss
of customers and reputational
darmage,

nresence in a2

.

Maﬁagememt regularty reviews the compeutive landscape
Intarget build areas to ensure pians do not conflict with
other alternatve netwark operat()rs,

Manzgerent engages proactively witr the Office of
Communicarens ana the Goverrment to ensare the
berefits of smaller op

BRI G A5 0 e T T GRS O B B

£

Increased
{Gue o rmors
compettors n

the marke)

erators are weil understood and o3

riierests are anpropnately represented.

re an active parbicipant in relevantindustry bodies,
cularly those representing alternatve netwark

The Group Fad CONUACiea Wiin 4 namos
sunpliers to reduce the exposure to any one mg‘wwf‘ua\
ertity Selection of ocutsource partners |s managed
thraougt: a detated proc

srement process with long term
visibiity of work allo w.r‘g pdrtr-ers to pian firancial anc

sifferart

lrcreased (due
O Irsreasing
demand ‘or
FESOLICE IN

people resources accordingly. the sector as
Where supply cham oroblaras are expactad for antical attematr\f

‘ - - Aerar il . JE By Networ
tlen":; our teams gerwelrai\-, have & months stock of fiore, oroviders scale
duct and other materia.s on hard, and zdvance order Builss)
te”%m cat EGqurﬁe’T wfh lor'g lna t\r@(-

Gur networks are buitt in a resiliznt way wnh d\w—r"@

route cptions sholld & falure occurin one route. g

Thig, combined we-th an abiaty @ fdemt:ry and resolve Nes o
conneciivity s5ues guickly, minimises downtime of e O crange

networks.

i
ﬁﬁi" %ktﬂ“\i;& S
5 “:;z;t?m,;:z:;*:ﬁ

Ladid
xﬁéws.évyév-«ﬁ‘ﬁhzx‘ iex.q&&x
A e T
he
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Principal risks and uncertainties

o

Market rask

Increasng inflatior
rates leac tc rn:(k
afferdacilty
Jdrop N proserty v
sectors of real eﬁme Thes may
‘MBact cur aoility 1 recave” a
Qarn full trougnh a refirance
o sale.

ro rierest
et-wide
ALrg i a

Counterparty risk:

Loans may oe rmade o unsuiable
COUMIRrparics, Mmpacung our
Aty can batance
refull.

o reCoyer the ic

Rlsk

uuuuuuuu A8A s ann

 Heslthcare/Home Building Divisions

Mitlgattons

ely rMar age our positon in the
YO eaforce where ne

. qu reams pro-act
rriarketpace and are precared t
a loan rroves inta defag

« Ourioars are made at cons
rating wilk a maxamum LTY of 70%

s LOans ae :.f:‘Culed aga. mt pf‘j‘ Calur rj@r\y| G
h - ssets ©

r;(,t’ﬁ” be r er-c“d

« Thorgugh due cilger ce 13 performed prior to
oars, including property or land vawartio
c%‘ﬁcka done o0 borrowers

ars are writter for assers u
s fm slace t enzure

‘f—c

Mitlgatlons

b A s s

ervative ioar-to-value [ILTY)

sesunty,
flre

der coratryction

\rg mr I’crd AVASWIS

g if

Market rlsk(Heatthcare and « Flanning consents or undeve X’mpd iandare oot s
Home Building): maximise "evertes and reduce me sk oF oszes on sale
Afal nhcuse prices could

mMpact Gur atility 1o generate

expected revenue fremthe sae

o agartraents in Sur retremient

vilages ard houvf bt by Shivea

Constructlon risk (Healthcare o ine Grouan enters fixed price coniracts where approor ste

and Home Building):

Construcion takes 'cnger or
than annopated
O rescurte svar qum; ar

Health and Safety
(Healthcare}:
Tne D.’EV‘:PUO” of Injury cr
vordabae oss of v of our
terisis of gimost e portarco
a.scrtca tomartanrga
ecutation Lingaucn as
frredica. malpractce
o oresudt Fda"ruu\ o
a5ed COSTS

&) Q&

ik

3

W0 W
AN
Q
8]
p

LD reguce exposure toancreasing mater al Costs.
« The Group orly works with repuiaite 3rd parrios wit

strong rack record of d g siTi'ar orgjects

nanaics oITies ard

“2l3ung to the provis'an of meaital seryice

= Grous

troLgr corducurg regu ar inernal r
55 subyect to externa, mspectiars b\'fe
e (Groag has 1Imsurance ool €8 N plad

firanaial iosses due 19 necical mapracoce

ha

Change

NO Caange

eCororic

corate)

noreazed (duae
to unslanie

RS

eccnomric

climate
o
focnd

Ne Cnange
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Market risk:
Anincrease in bas
ncrease costs on debt faailties,
IMpacting the Grouo's abiity to
service debt az it fals due

Liguidity risk:

Scor managereant of casn w thin
the Group could impact the
Group's al:lity to reet oblgalions

as tney fal: gue.

Health and Safety risk:

The safety of our employees

ana those erployed throush
contracts are of paramount
irnportance There s a nsk that
acc dents in the workg-ace could
resultin serious injury or death,
Cyber Security risk:

An attack cor our -T systerns and
data couid lead to dizruptionr.

of our operations and lozs of
customer data Loss or m.suse
of data may resuitin reputational
damage, regulaiory action under
GLFR ard potential fine

The strategic report was approved oy the Board of Drectors on

PS Latham
Director
16 December 2022

Mitigations

own dedicated resource for ' T and

e

We employ a Chief lrformation Secucty Ocer [CISCT)

Wners floatirg rate deipt < n piace iwhers interest varies

in line with an underlyng senchmark rated. the Group %
enters nwo hedging arrangements to fix a porticn of these Increased
payments throughout the term oF the faciity, Hedging faue 10 rse in
arrangements are cutbned i Note 21 of the Ainanciat inierest rates)
statements.

A detaited cash f.ow forecast is prepared ard rev ewed

by management oA a mioninly basis, noorporating cash

avallabrity and cashi requirements across e Group. On at

least a quarterly bas s th.s s shared with the Board.,

The Group maonitors bark covenants on an ongoing basis e

to ensure conunued adrerence o covenands. Whare =

covenarts can't be mat, forec updated for the No change

lower cash avaiabe as:
Tre Group has a flexiie
drawn on at shors notice wwm

regds.

o
-
e
2
p.

(

the weil-being of our staf.
Fealth ano safety trai-ing is providea o our sta*f and
contractors o a reguiar bass.

Increased

‘

wha is respons:ble for data secunty across the Group and
reports quartesly % the Board.

The CISO works closely with cur busingsses (o ensure e
adequata standards of secunty ana infermation No change

managernent are met.
Each of aur businasses thar hold custorner data nas thair

securty

16 Decemnber 2024 and signed on its benalf by

s
g R aian xd e

R
ats 5 A ER

el R i
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Corporate governance

2J;o {the "Act™), and riave, ir gc—c-d :aitn, acedima
way matwould be rmost ckely to promoere the

success of the Droup ‘or the benefit of it memibers
as a whole (hawng regard 1o al siakero.ders ana
L72(0¥a-f of the Acg

in e deaisions taken during tre yes

rmatters set oulin section

rent

20 dgre P00
SLodune £ugd,

in the porformance of ite duty 0 premote the
success oF the Groug, the Board hasregara o a

numMier of maters, ‘m-:j!uc\r‘;g fhe uxely

erce of any decsions in toe eng erm, and

of the Group s key stakencide
SO Do trust and ensure f fuily undersiande the

ttens Lo the visws

potentzal impacts of ahe cecsions it makes. Tae
Joard fulfis tnese dutes partdy by delegation to

commitiees anc the coards of subsidary
n

who opergte wilh n 3 carporats

governance framework acress the Group
y Board mesting a review of nezalth and

finarcia. and operaticral
gacand requlatory
The coard als

other areas over the course of tre i

23 the groun,

15 undertaken o oreview

“ANCia. year
including tre Group's busingss strateay, key nsks,
stakehcder-rzlated matrers, diversity a~d irclusyiny,
resnonsibuty, and

@rvironmonia. matters, cornorate

governance, corrphacce and egal matters.

Principal decisions
We define pr ncpa‘, decisions take by the Boara as
tnose decisc

groups T he the folow g are

exarp es o onncipa dec.s.oret made 10 the year

erded 30 June 2022

e Evaluatrg ard gec ding to mMove a7ezd wiin
increasing wnd oper

3
Qur renewslh of Qivison in Augus?t

Zroup acgurred a arge scale, regdy lo construcs
wind site in Australia This deployment aigns
with the Growp's strategy 1o continue o

develop renewaple energy sites which crovide

prediclabe, long-erm revenue streams, T he

Board concidered the oproriunity and how it

aligned with our oiectives
contrioution o the

10 make a posibive

comerurity and env.ronment.

expand Inio our news
May 2022
ured Elvia homes, g full-

[he Groun gecded o

dwvisicn, house buiding, In e Group

service property

sevelopar providing servces fror the des.gr,

W the eng reennc and tnen final construcaon

[ ensyre delvery of guality workmans

Drersiyng the Groug's asset base and E’"u@'(\ﬂg

> th s new secior has peen well thought

cut witr long terr growin in ming. The Board
©opportunties witnin the
anead with this

rirg how this would imoac

acqusition. conside

existing businesses within the divieon and now
it airgn Fwitn the GroLp’s $TaicgIc obinctives 1o

-ermn vale and |

for our s‘narehotd ars.

predictable growin

f?eviev-zimg ard deciaing to move anead with

sing bicmass operaucns wihich iz part of
'n Ocr
e

Group acqu'red a Pfq\_ scal

SLr renewst.os QIvis 01 oher 2021 the

. waste-1g-erergy

. Tris decloyment

u
(J_

CONStruchior it 10 ool
aligns w <h the Grou

diversify the Frcup d velop renawanie enaergy

sifes which provige prediciable, io-g-term

en.e streams, &M provde reslierce agars:

whalesale proag charges n tme UK energ

mar<et Th

ans how it g

make a oS

ana ernaronmert
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Corporate governance

« The noard decided to change audit firms va 2
tender crocess for the year ended 30 June 2022
The Greup had changed significantly since the
prev ous auditors were apponted and therefore
we ware unatle to reliably assess the vae for

monay we receves Three firmg underwent
tne encer process and zrest & Young LLP were
selecied because of ther strong commercial
understarding of our business, efficiert auait
mrethodology and value for money.

Business strategy

the Strategic Repert, Management

cdetailed Group cudget whicn is approvad oy the

(we)

oard or ar: anneal casic and forrms tre bas s for
r

—

he Groun's resource plann
dgacisions. Ir making decisions concernng e
cusiness pian, the Beard has regard first and
ost o te strateqie focus, but alse to other

ﬂ\
@]
3
_2

matiers sucn as the interests of ks vanous
stakehcolders and the ong-term impact of its
actions on the Groug's future and reputation

Shareholders

Snareholcer relations ard generating shareholcer
value 's a kay corsigeraucn wren ithe Board 15
making strateqic decions. The prime medium by
wrilch the Group communicates wth sharehoiders
is through the annual repcrt and financal
statements, which aim to provide shareholders with
a ful understarding of the Group's activities and its
resulis Tnis information s punlished on our website
at www . ferntrading.com.

Employees

The Groun's emolayees are fundarnenta. to the
overall success of the business. The Directors fulfit
ther duty © errployess by entrusting oversight
subsid ary Boards which tne Chief Executive of the
Group alse sits on

The directors of the subsidiary uncertaxings
manage the day (o day decision rmaking,

engagement and communications with employees

and ensJre that pecple are treated farly and are
valued with respect to nay, benefit anc conditions.
Ve fully reatise that our emgioyees wish 10 be
informea and consultea on matiers affecting their
work and 1o be invoived in problem-solving
affecting ther owr areas of .nterest and

responsinisty The Group s irmly corrmitted © &
ricat on at all levels and we

solicy of good commun
aim o establish a climate which constanty
encourages tre open flow o informaiion and

ideas. Fresently this inciudes monthy team briefings
a: a local tevel and the puolication of maorthly key
ce Irdicators coverng output, operatng

The health ang sa‘ety of our employees in the
workpace s a contmual focus for the Group, given

its broad operational business The Crreciars réview
Health & Safety Report'ng ar each board meesting (o
ensure approprate policies anc procedures are in
place 1o protect the heath and saiety of cur
empioyees and cortractors Wnere there are
potentia: defciencies o issues, these are folowed
up and resoived on a timely basis, with the Soard
hav'ng overs ght of the actions taken.

The Groun ocutsources actvities and managemerit
of certain ooerational activites o external suppiiers.
Where activities are outsolrced the Soard ensures
that they are managed by reputable supphers who
meet all the retevant industry and regulatory
commmutments as well as treatirg ermmpioyees fairly.
Expected stancards are documented in zll service
contracts and acherence to these are conunually
rrontored by Board through their service
agre=ment witty Gotopus Investments Lim ted.

Suppliers and customers

The Group acts in a fair manner with all supg.ers
and custemers and seeks o maintain strong
business relationshps witn them. This s achieved
by all contracts be ng negotated tarough a fair and
transparent tender process which nciudes
ass=gsing toe impact on the long-term objectives of
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the Graup We reviaw Gur Daymeant 0rocessns

et against cortracls every six months to ansuse

suppiers are pa-d prompily and this information for

e company i availabie on the www.gov.uk

website,

The Groug ensaresit 2cis fairly and in a transparent
rs anid
services, and actively engages to resclve any disputes
The Board cioseily rmonizors cu

rnarner to all customears across all dvisio
or cefaults Istormer
melics and engsges wikn the
CUSINESS pEriformance coes

maragement team 1o
undersiandg the issaeg if

noL Mmeet customers’ expectat:ans

Tre Board considers Octonus Invesimeris Limited

to be g key bus id sunpuar weth

Iness partner a-
resoontibilty for tre srovsion of

Ovef:ﬂgnf Tnancal acrminstrahon and comoany

operational

secretarial servic

Community and environment

Tne prov nd operation of sustzinable
Infrastruciore is at the centre of th oup's

5]
-t
."
‘\

eqic goas Through its busingss actiy

Q

Oup seeks 1o make a positive cantribut on o the
comraunity, erneronmenrt ard econormy Cur

re-ewsble energy business is heoryg the L mest
s renewabie energy targets, our orivate hos
Figve s
pance™ic by p
NHS pauents that otherwise could not have been

oias
supporied the MHS trroughout the Covd-13
on-Covid-19

srovd ng treavmient far n

carried out, anc cur fibre networ< will gve pecple

N rural Communities access to figh-snean
tbroadbianc
Business conduct

s Directors Sur ntenton s to benave resoons

ersanns mMan

regity and

pages 1i o 14
other busnesse

%)
o
s}
e
8]
=
(%]
@
i
=3
2
8]
=
X
<
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Business ethics and governance
The Beard 15 responsible for ensanng that the

Lo

activities of tre Group ard 1S vanous bu

conduc

sINesses are

ted in comp. ance with the law and

apoicaole > and reguia ard

in adherence with prevailirg oes: pract ce for the

> QOMETNENCE TGry requres,
ravienw:ig internzl
apprr\oqatc

repfese';ted cnthe

relevant indostry Trig includes
contros, ensdr rg that there is
Lalance of skit
Eoard,
give a truc

an
5 and excernence
5t the fir

the state of affars of the

and ensarineg t anc 3l siaterents

A Eo

and far view of :

Group Furtrer detall car be found i sratemient

of drec SIS resporns b‘ht‘eg or page
to 20 June 2, ??’ no areas of corcerr
ﬂagged in fnis reqarc.

Employee, human rights, social and community
issues, environment policy and anti-corruption
and bribery matters

The Board's poucy on emp'oyes, hurman «gots,

social and COrrmMurity 1SsJes, er “wirgrment PJO <y

and ani-corrugion and bribery matiers is giscussed

n e Drecrors Report on page 2% The Boad
actively promotes a corperate culiure that s based

on ethical values ara rwr.awours.
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Hoview of financial statements

the share price and may nat reflect changes in th

48]

The purpose report 12 o proviae adsitionsa!

expianatory information on the financa statements full mar=zet value of assels or businesses cwnea by
1 Mmedasanrg our periormance, the fiinanc. the Group.

measures that wea use inc.l -rj those that have been .
A numier of acguisinons were made during the

year, inciuding nine ooershonal reserve Cower sites,

derved from our reporied resuits In order 1o

I

eliminate facrors that distort vear-on-year
comparisonsg. Tnese are consigered non-LAAS
financia. mezsures

a waste to energy site under construction, a

construction ready wind farm in Austraiiz and

seventeen solar rocftop sites under canstraction

Areconcilat on of these 1o the finarcial resdlts can Shiartly after the year end. in July 2022, we sold
ne

be fourd in note 28 of t Larlington Paint, 3 large solar site in Australia

staterments . . , ) R
Is; supp‘art contnued excansion, we ~ad bu'lt up
The financa statements snow aszefs at cost, as such cashn ves at year end of £250m whicn :ncluded

they do not reflect the fuiure value trat we expectitc alarge cash mnflow of 297m from placing exterral
a

derve from these busingssaes To that exent refirancinrg in Carungior Poirt prior to sals
accountng performance may ciffer mateﬂat{y from
{restated) Movement
2022 2021
£'000 £000 £'000 %
Reverue 711,830 425,302 286,345 7%
ERITDA 194,916 104,036 90 880 a7%
’(JﬁE ’\os;; H@fore tdy 47 604 (22 663) 7(“ zf)/ 5lf
: endmg nosk e of provisions) 350 901 385 512 (44 & 11‘ (6/1
Casn 256, 415 172,478 83,9?7 4;'/
de 793 169 699 440 93 729 13/c
2 219 448 1 887 842 331 60 18%

Financial performance P Fa25m) which was predominantly driven by a B4%
Overall the Group has reported g profit before tax of 1 increase inrevende within our energy division. Tis
F476m tor tre year erded 30 June 2027 which1sa 1 growtn s two foid, increasad crcrjy generation

£70 Zm improverrent on the prior year 1’2021
E22.7m loss restated). Overall EBITDA increased by ! oplanis for the full year and 3 large solar plant in

from having owned/operated o Four biormass

87% 10 £195m (2021 £104m restated), wnich s L Australia reaching commessioning, and a significant
=

primarily due 1o iIncreased energy gereraton as weil 1 INGrease n averaGe energy prices over tre year due

as ircreased energy prices 10 the mismatch between supply anc demand,

. I v exacerlzates by the ongoing conflict in Ukrame
Revenue increased by £287m to £712m (2027 i Y v SAERRS hahiht

"Larmirgs before interest, tax, c2preciation ang amoresation
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Reverue growth wag strongest in our energy

civisor: but we alse saw 2 markec

improvement in
anl wllages Ths
the
lockdowns requ:rea by tre Cond-19 vandermic

reveriue frorm our rel ’rfr* pact of

our business has ounded well frorr
response, selling 41 unite in tne year
52%) and an mcreasng
£20.4m (2021 £127my

noravenue

Revende from our lending divis.on saw 3 drop of
25% to L42m (2021 £57
loan oook cver 10g year as Cash was made avartabl ]
tO grow other cart

M) duUe WO a sl

D

er averag

4]

s of thie business

Operating expenses for the year were ntrne with

our expect with the ncrease prmarly drver

Dy -ncreased operahing costs N our Tkre div sion as

it has exvanded Refnanang exiermal deot (o
secure IMnroves s Over the past two years a3
contributed 1o 3 decrease in inlerest cosis of £2 5

to £23.6m (202 £236 1m)

iCluded i the résuils thes year s a profit of £28m

recogrised on e sale of two witd farms n Firland
and a reausaticn of £L6m of deferred cons.ceration
or solar sites soudd in pravious years

Financial position
Contnued snareholder nteres
seen
restated). I the year efde

tand:

rnvestment has

met 3isers grow o

1Issued 120m snares (2021 150m! for a tots!
consideraton of £204m (2821 £2.327mr) Thne
compargtive year numoers inclide £1.89%3m of
Aroue resmuciur ne

consideraucn relating to

wasiets of EB08r 2621 £663m restated;]
2 reduction in

external financ NG & anINnrease N work :r gro gress

MNet curran

have increased by 2145 reflecting i

NI i P
visions Our lozn

operating acivies decreased o £42m (2021
£7;42W} which nas been

leng-terrn arancirg and o

dliced aongsde exernal
CAapit

. We have invesied

al raised by rew share

1Zsues ko grow e bus ness
suostantially intoc the hbre ore
tr e pazt four years which w:il

expenditure cver the next 3-

diversificaton across sectors
Ct the
S ENEr

cash hed at year erd, E211m was held in

Beidiaries,
~and
under way, reguiring Cazh w

qy. home ouilding ana fibre su

whare thare ars a number of constructo
infrasztru

be reacily avai.anle for <tage pay™ments due in the

Cure projecis

rnonths aftar y=ar ena
Goosw.\l, at £54lm 12021 E5E 7 restated),

contnues to be 3 s'gfm cant numper or the
ta

halance Sl‘cﬂ 5235 On tre acquisition of some

CLsimesses, ACauirec businesses, for exarnple

reaowable encrgy stas, often nave a market value
n excess of the company’s net assels,
freir relizb e fulure 1ncome sireams Accounting
convertion raquires that arly |

ide
¢ shieel so e accaunts

named or the o3lanc

Cannot racord e balance of the adamional marke:

value which compnzes the fuiure prohts that st

(D

ddiional value n
s (such

w daliver,
= of fixed azzets

ccogrused a8 goothwl.

are expec e ad

Put sirply, the market va.ue <f the energy

generation busitesses ior Indeed any cperat ora
bus resses; reflecs the value of future e:<pectec
profits, not the cost of <imply buying tang ble assers
such as so0.ar pane.s or wind wrbines We pay
rmarket value ‘or the s.tes we accure, whch 'rw/

excead trae vaue of igentifable ass

slar oanes and so gererates goody
essertialy represents the va Le ¢f X
future ‘ncome strearss, Goodwill recogn sed wy

craduzlly be wrtten off, typically over “he life of ¢

urns are regliced

SiE,

as expecied e
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Sector performance
(2021 E196m restared), parti
site cosis where F120m was incur-ed at our

driver by ircreased

Energy

Az econcmis activity and global demand increszed
throughout the year, <0 oo did wholesale enargy
prices, driven by movernerds in comrmrodity prices,

Ciomacs sites and £93m ai our reserve cower sites,
the prizes for raw materials have increased, on
average, by 69% que 10 an Increase ir the suppt
costs. Trhe combined coot of sales for the reserve

which resulted i the overall increase in revenue
earned 3Cross our enargy sites These marke!
factors hf;ve resuted in arircrease in reveriye of
B84% 10 £592m (2021 £322rm)

power and biomass sites increased b'y‘ “11Cmr o
£217m {2021 107m) :t should be noted that the
revenue generated by the biormass a~d reserve

Correspondingly, EBITOA also increased by 112% o
E2E6rm (2027 LiZEm resiated) re ng the
sgrificart increase in energy revenue Gverall tota.

power sites increased oy £182m during tne year to
E£353m (2021 Z16im;),

OoErating costs increased by £130m to £327m

FY2022 FY2021 FY2022 FYz021

Production Production External External

{MWh) (MWh) Availability Availabitity

Biormass 1,050,038 889,55 3 84.6% 81 2%
Landili Gas 240,226 25R.0526 97.9% G7 6%
Resorve Powe” 403,355 141,086 94.2% G2 0%
Sclar 554,858 517112 97.7% 96 0%
wind 851,214 881,241 90.5% 3 1%

Total 3,099, 690 2,682,019
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Healthcare
Heal

E<Em

(2021, £42m) - Groun ravenues for the year

heare cperat ons contributes

reflecting (re ingact of Increasea revenus in
Rangeford Zales of anariments at the retirement
viwages have repcunided well from the loc<downs
requires by tne 4-19 oandem:c response,
seling 41 urits ir tne year (an norease of 52% fom
2021 ana increasing revenuye by £7.6m o £20 Z2m

2025 E12.7m).
Lending

Reven.e from len
{2025 £57my
loan haok (or 20

ding decreased by 14 o E4Z2m
crinatily due 1o a smaler average
2. which resulied n a decreased

27
for thoy

revenue

ar

The wial loan cook

reduced Dy 6% to L3651 at the yegr end {2021
C38arm) Ths reduchon in the loan boox erakles
cash te be avalanls *or opooriunities zorgss Sther

sectars with n tne Growg inclusing acquistions and
corstruction. The make-uop of e loar hock ~as
shifted sugnily

murrber of smalier loans within the residenva

where we have 1ssued a nigher

sector, as we!l as more arger loans  the

O

eveloprment sector and the commercial sector,

EB TDA for the lend ng division decreasad 0 2 loss
of E8 7 from a prafit of neary £1m i the oro

vear 17705 moverrent reflects a nrovision of £
tre loan Loox 3gainst 0ans 1o reserve power sites
and a provision agamnst a realthcare loan of £14m
In the year to June 2022, £ 3% was prowvided

agamnsticans versds £20m i trie prior year

Fibre
As a reladvely new Gason, al the Fors businesses

are rtne buid prase anc are staring 1o ada

D

CUSICMErs o tha r netw

1 ha

gl
the

Dusirasses scale their opercﬁ ors and deve%oc

g in lire with ex

developme nfal tage

As we bild these networks out, the assers wil pe

recogrusad on the Balance sheect ar cost which

canrot irciice uiure J::l,le which s expected o be
seis have
et

gerarated This s different to tne share price wnere

generated ag the as pacn internaliy

3
U
—
Z
s
-
=
]
<
D
=
]
©
x
(&
I

~ed o Do generated from *

Home building
Elivig t=c
tnerefore nad imited impact on *he finarca’

rres was acgwired n May 2022 ara has

performance dunr g the year. The busress is
forecast wo delver £78m revenue and £6.5™

EBITOA for the year ended 50 June 20273 SRS
th

Qe
from the frst guarter of 20232 ndicate the bu ress

s broadly performing iniine wtin expectalicns

Funding and liquidity '

Our strategy ‘< 1o secure long-term “nancirg at
conservat ve levels from mainstrearr banks to

enhance relurrs frorm our rerewable energy
bus nesses Al yezar end we had £1.044m of

»_tfinancirg with £441rm of

tO acqure businesses trat tne

mareet oo ave stebie characensaes sucn

as predict
govermment incertives or proven technology and a<
such have iower retuns that wakout leverage woula
pe rzL e ent for cur shareholders taso alows us
flexbilzy in fnan

cas™ How We seleve t

ShG our busreszes 4 3 rmranaging

strateGy Wouid nave a
return ard sharehoder va
Aoproxirratey 80% of our nterest payabis is fixed

and therefore we are not
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the «
review nancing arrangements o ersdre tnat they

arrent interest rate volatinty, We connnually
are competifive and optimized for the needs of the
Dusiness. 1o ensure cash is managed in ar agite

rnanner, we maintan a fexble fnance fac:u[y

which can be drawn down or repa\d s mieel
immediate business naeds

Looking ahead

The Group nas rebounaes well from the effects of
the Covid-19 pandemic and has outperfarmed

expectat ons. Whiist the current economic Guicok
fon

is one of cnallerge and uncertainty, we anticinate
mirtmal imoact o Sur resuilts due to the
oredictable revenue strezms arnd cos bav, and
essent al rature Cf our activines. C ed with the
diversifcaton we have bubill up acros he DUSINESS,
we are peiitoned strongly for thase wrbulent

tires ahead

We contirde 1o pay parvcuiar attent on 1o tre twin
chailenges of rising interest rates and surging
inflation - Lotk ntermis of lerding and porifolic
managezmeant. These trends imgact all areas of the
Group's business and are likely 1o remain for the
foresesab e future, soowe remain disciplined in our
investmert approach, continuing 1o monitor the
situation carefully and taking a prudert agprosch to

any cdrrent and emerging rigks.

We are positive about the continued opportunity

for growtn and contirue to believe that the
business 1s positicned well to take advantage of
future growth opporturities across its core business
areas tnergy, lending and house bulocing
operat-ons are wetll established n the market and

continue to rrake excelent progress with rebust
perforrnances In the new financial year, In line with
our planned strategy, since the year end we scld &

large sclar farm in Australa for a small orofit, with

proceeds teing redepioyed nto new opporiunities

Deployment irto fibre continues 1o ol ocut in tne
wotln expectat.onz and trig

rmore than 150,000 homes by our fibre networks

Group Fas now passec

our healincare division rermaing
ales hudget
alreaqy corrpleted or reserved across all stes as at

Sales activity In

strang, with nearly 40% of annua. s

the end of Segtemcer

a3 part of

JK Governme=twill

Announced within tne

the 20273 Fiﬂance Blii,

= guiumn statement
the:
enact a 45% winafall levy {"Electricity Generator
Lavy” or "EGLY)

everues in excess of E75/MWh This 1s expected (o
uary 2043 10 31

will be published
sed on the mitiat

Jori whaolesale energy markes

-

apply to the Group from 1 Ja
March 2028 Tre
i mud-Cecempaer 2022, cut ba

o oexact =69|S|5UO(1

ct ar*:alysas ~as been performed

r 2027 We estimate the impact

release an irmpac
as at 30 Septerno
to be a arop in valuaton of approxmately E45m
for e wres affected, wh ch contributea to a
2.0p decreasa in the share price 10 177.0p n
Decerber 2022

We expect to genearate stirong coerabng returns
fror our established divisions for the coming years,
n addit:on to the antcipated cutflows for our
construciion phase assets “he n
fibre divisions are well into therr bulc ohacse i line
with gur Iorg-term strategy and we anticipate
strong raturrs

realtrcare and

aver the next five (o seven years

upan maturity

PS Latham
Cirector
16 December 2022




Directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2022

The directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2022

—

For a surnmary of the Group's resuits, refer to the
Group hnance review ¢~ page 23

Tre dractors have not recommended paymrent of
a divicdend (2021 £NY,

PS5 Lathamn

{J Willey
G Barow

T A-tnur faopor-ted 1July 2022]

The Group's oojectives and policies on financal risk
ma-agement including informanon on the
exposure of the Group to credit risks, uiquidity re<s
and market reks zre set oLt in note 21 to the
financial statements The Group's principal risia are

set out i the strafeqic regors on page 16,

s T T . : [ S

srenitted by section 4i4c (11} of the Companies

Act 2006, the directors have elected o cisclose

irformaton regured o pe 10 the drecters report

i

dute 7 of the Large ard Meciirn szed

Tre Board recagnises that a corporate cutiure

[N

ed or scund eth cal values ang benaviodrs is an

azset. ire Group erdeavours 1o conduct its

business wih gty in an etn Selgr-H

ang responsible manner, reating our employess,

custorTers, sunnliers and parinecs with courtesy

snd rezoect

Apcicat'cns for employment by
are giver ful ard far corsders
e
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v o N L PN

We fully realise tnat our employees wish o be

nformed anc consulted on ma

wok and to be invclved in probiemﬁoiwng affecung

ers affacting ther

thesr own areas of nterest and resgonsiouty

The CGroup s Grrly comm.ted o g poscy of goo
commancator at allevels and we aim 1o estakhs™
a cimate which constanily encouraces the open
flow of \rformatiorn and 1deas. Presently this
ncludes monshly tearmn bnefings at a locat leve: and
the publication of morthly key oerformance
indicators covening autout, operaling costs and
nea.th and safe

The Groun has 10 place an agreement with Ootopus
Irvestments Lirited to prov des cervices o the
Croup covenng operaticnal oversigi,
adrrnistration, comgany secratarial and comparty
accounting

environmental, socal
and corporate governance ["ESGT polcy on

30 Seprember 2020, The Group recognises the
reed 10 conduct s busingss, n a mann
responsitle to the envircnment, wherever possible

the Board adooted a formal

erthat s

As alow energy Jser, the Company has elected not
to disclcse data on its energy and carbon usage.
Fern Trading Limited is the only Comgany in the
critera and

therefore no information is provided for the Group

Group that meats the reporting ¢

as a whole

“he Groun's has an Anti-Bribery Policy which
introduced robust procedures to ensdre ‘ull
compliance with the Bribery Act 2010 and to ensure
that the highest stanaards of professional ethical
conduct are rmaintained.

In accordance with the recommendat ong of The UK

Corporate Governiance Coce, tre Board has

considered the arrangerments in piace to encourage
taff of the Group or manager of the Group to raise
CONCeras, in conﬁdence, within therr organizatic

e Irmpropnet es 1n matters of finarcal

It is satished that adagLate

about possik
reporing or other ratiers
arrangernerits are in place to alow an independent
investgation, ard folow-or achion whnare necessary,

to ta<e place within the organisation

We are cormimitted to actirg ethically and with
alings and

g€
ntesrity 111 ali Our Gust 5 de
menting and enforcing

relationships and to imale
effective systems and co
slavery 1S not taking place anywne

trofs te ensure moderrn
re in our own
business or inany of our supply chans, consisient
with cur abligations unaer the Madern Slavery Act
Z01L. We expect the same Migh stanaards
of our contracters, suppliers and other busiress

from all

partners As part of our contraclng processes, we
expect our suppliers to comply with the Modern
Slavery Act 2015

The directors are responsible for preparing the
Anriua. Report and the financial statements in
accordance with apphcabio law and regulation

Company law requires the girectors (o prepare
financial statercents for each financial year, Under
that «aw the drrectors have prepared the Groug and
Company financial statements in accordance with
Linted Kingdom Generaily Accepted Accounting
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards,
comprising rRS 102 "The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK ang Republic of
Ireland’, and apglicable law). Urder company law
tre directors must nat approve the financial

staterments urless they are satisfied that they give a
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Q,I

rrue anc fain view of the state of s of the Group

afl
and Company and of the proht or loss of the Group
and Company for that pericd. In preparing tha

nanc-al statements, the direciors are regu’red (o

« select suitable accounting poices and then apply

therm consistentiy;

« state whether applicatie Un.ted Kimgadorm

Accounting Siandaras, comprsing FRS 102, bave
beer followed suljectto any materal departures

explaned

disclosed anag

in the financial

ents and account.ng estirnates that
a

o prudent ancd

v prepae the finarcisi statomrents on the gong
conce ™ oasis wnless it s nappropnate to
presume that the Group and Corruarny wil
CONTNUE I DUSINESS

Tre drectors are a0 re safeguar (ng

f the Croup anc Comoany and hanc
for ta«u‘ng regsonabie steos fc the prevent or amd

detection of fraud and other irregulariues

Tne g

coount ng rec

erxplain the Group and Lons and

Company’s fransac

disclose vath reasonable iawaq at any brme the
'a]

fnanc.al posimor

of the up and C

2l ompar.a/ and
enable them to ensure that tr" e fin

statements
omply witr tne

Tre directors are resporzible for the manit

ity of tne Corrpany's weosite Legwsiatlor‘—

n te Uﬂite-.i Kingdorm covernimg the oreparamon
anc disseT cla. stater-ents may d\Ffer

from legislaton 1o other urisdictons

As permeted by the Arficles of Associauon, the

directors have tha benefit of an mdemnity whicr s

a gualifying third-carty indarmnity crovision as
defined by section 234 of the Companies Act 2C06
The indernnity was in force throughout the last

firancial year anc is <. ,rmm(/ in force.

n the case of each directar .n office at the daie the
Directors’ Report s approved:

e SO far 23 the crector s aware, there s no relevant
aud tinformrat on of which the Grouo and

Cormrpany's auditors are unaware, and

. they have taken all the steps that they ought

to have take srpder to make

themseives aware ©f ary relevant audit

‘nformation and o establish that the \JfOUD and

s atviNioIan

Companry's auditors are sware of th

This confirmaton g given and srould be nterprated

irac
e Cormparios Act 2006

ordanca weih the provisions of section

Zrnst & Young LLP having been apnointed n 2022,

rave indicated e wikingnass ¢ 08 reappainied
~another term z2rd will be progosed for re-
appe niment i accordance with secton 485 of the

Zompanies Act ZU i3

The D t
Direcrors on 16 December 2022 ard

behalf by

ors recort was aporoved Ly tre Board of

sgned on it
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Opinion
YWe have 3
Trodm
subs.dianes the 'Group’)

udited the financial statements of Fern
Limited (the Parent Company'} and 1t3
for the year ended 30
dune 2022 which comprize The Group Staterrent of
Comprehenzive Incorre, the Group and Farent
Company 3aance Sheel, the Group Statenent of
Casr Flows, the Group and Farenit Statement of
Charnges in tquity and the related notes 1w 29,
ncluding a surnmary of significant accounting
policies The financal reporting framework that has
peen applied in therr aoreparation 1s ag pl\'cable larw

rd Ur ted Kingdom Accounting Standard
includirg FRS 102 "Tne Finarcial Reportmg

Srandard appacabie in the UL and Hepublic of
lreiand” (United Kinggom Gereraliy Acceptea
Accourutmg Praciice).

In our opin ¢n, the financial staterments,

a true and “air v ew of the Group's and of tne
arent Company’s affairs as at 30 June 2022 and
of the Group's preht for the year then ended,

« nave been property pregpared in accordarce with
Jnited Kingdor- Generally Accepted Accounting
Fractice, and

« have been prepared in accardance with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2005,

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with
Internatonal Standards an Auditing LK) (ISAs (UK)
and app. cable law Qur responsibiliies under those
s are furtner descr bed in the Auditar's
r@sponswbii!nes for the aLgit of the financial
staterments secticn of our repcrt. We are
:rrdeperden of the Group in accordance w'th the
ethical requirermnents tha
the Ainancial staternents
FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical respansibitties in accordance with

standard

T are reievant to our audit of
n the UK, inciuding the

these reguirements

AL

that the audit eviderce we have

propriate b

We believe

obtained is suficiert ard ap o provide a

bas:s for our opinion,

Conclusions raiating to going concern

Ir auditng the financial statements, we have
concluded that the directors uze of the going

concern basis of account ng it the preparation of
the friancial statements 1s appropnae

Rave
5 relat:ng o
or coilecnively

Basad on the work we have performed
notidentfed any materal ungcertante
events or conditions mat, ndraduaily
may cast sigrificant doust on the Group and Parent
Comrpany's ability 1o continug orcerm

foor a perind of twave months from wne

333 goInd C

> the

financial staterrents are authcrised for issue.

Our responsibélities and the responsib ites of
ect to gqoing concern
Lﬂvsmt sectians of this

use nct ali future events or

tne directors with -

are described in the
report. However, bec
condtions can be precictad, this statement 1s not &
guarante2 as to ?*he Group's abil ty 1o conunue as a

going concern

Other information

The cther information comprises the information
ed 'n the arnuat report, other ran the

and our auditor's report
thereon, The directors are resporsicle for the other
informeation contained witnin the annual report

includ
financal statemeénts

r opinion on the inancial statements does not
cover the other informat en and, except to the

extent otherwise explicitly stated in th.s resorl, we
do ot express any forrr of assurance canclusion

thareon,
Qur re

and. in domng so, consider whether the
information is materiaily nconsistent witi: t

sgonsibility is to read the ather infarmation
= other

financ-al statements or cLr knowledge obtaned in
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

the course of the aud ! or otherwse appears o te

materally misstated if we dentify such mazeriat

inconsisiendcias
we are required to determineg whe
tna material

Qr apnarent materal misstatemen:s,
ther this gives rise
misstatement in the financiac
staternents themselves if, based on -2 wor< we

have pﬂ;formed we corcude that there iz a

:')'

matenal rissament of the other information, we

% on other matters presoribed
wipanies Act 2068

the work andertaken in

rrnation givens in the Strategic repaert and
tre Drectors report for the financal year for
which the finarcal staterments are

consstent witn the fina

= the Sira
been praparad 1IN ac
iegsl reguiremenrs

JIC report ana JIreciors report nave
cordarce with aptacanle

Matters an which we are
report by exception

raguired 1o

N the tght of tre knowiedge and understarding or
e Growp ard toe Parert Company and its
arvironment cofa’ned in the course of the audit,
wa Nave Nt :centifed raterial misstatererts ik
the Sirategic

reportor Directors’ report

We have nothi~g to repert in respect of the
following matters in relztor to wrich tne
Comparies Act 2006 reguires ws © reparl i you f

HaliathigioTel[aTtolan

2 3CCouli ng records Fave not oeen kep:,
o returrs adeq zame for cur aucit nave Nl cean
recejved fr

Crr Branctes not visted Dy us, or

ent with tne ancount rg recerds and

crn
returns. or

£ Directors remuneration

by law are not made; or

= we have not rece

exp@arations we reca.re for o

Responsibilities of directors

As explaired more fuly 'n tne Directors’
resporisibibties statemenrt sst out O pages 29 a~a

205 e Dyrectors are responsible for the preparation
of tne financial staterrents and for being saisfed

and fair view, and for such

rrerma: contros as the Sireciors determine is

trat they g ve at

neca

ry t enanle the nresaratior of fnancial
staterne~ts that are free from maenal
misstaterent, wrether due w fraud oreror

In precarnirg the financial siaterments, tre Grrectors
are resocnsiie for assessng the Grouo's and the

—

Parant Cormpany's abn:

Wy to continue as a going

corcern, disclosing. as apphoable, maters related
1O going CONCErT ang us ng the going concarr
basis of accounting unless tre Directors aithear
o or the Farent
Compaty of [0 COAsE oLeralicns, of have no

C

i~tend to bguidate tne Grou

3

reaistic alterratve but to 9o <o,

5

(

Audlitors rezponsibiities for the audit
of the financial statements

Oar obectives are to ootan reasconatle assurance
ahodt whether tre financia, starements as a whcie
are free from matena: misstatement, wnether due
o fraud
tratincluaes our opinon. Reascrsh.e as

or errgrn, and G issue an audins

ﬁ
(%]
—
[}
[
O

=

ararce s
& hgh leve! of assuwrarce
an audit corducted in accordance with 15As (LK)
Palways detest a mater al miszlaterast woen .

Chutisnot a guarar‘.tee that

sta Misstalenrents can ar se from frawd or error

g ore comsiaeed material i, indryiduelly crir the
aggregate, they coula reasonably ke P‘/peuﬂ

nCe omic secisiors of users taken on

ese fnarcal statemenis
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

Explanation az to what extent the + obtain'ng an understanding of poticies and
awdit was consideraed capable of
deteciing irraguinrities, including

fraud

procadures i puace regargirg comgliance

with aws and regulations, including how
ompharce with such polcies s mon:tered

ang enforced; obtaining an understanding of

Irregulanties, Including fraud, are instances of non-
management's proceass foridentyng anc

espond ng o fraud risks, including prograsns
ang controls established o adaress risks

complance with laws and reguiat ons. We design

procedures in fine with cur responsisilitas, outlinred
above, 1o detect irregularties, including fraud. The & )
risk of pot detectng a mater.al missiaternent due 1o ; icentied, or ctherwise prevent deter and
fraud = higher than the risk of not detecting one

resulting from error, as fracd may :nvolve deberate

detect fraud, and now sen.or managernent
mMonitors those programs and contrals;

conceaimenrt by, ‘or examiole, forgery or interticnal ¢ o review of board Mmeeting rmmutes in the oeriod

misrepresentations, or thirougr coldusicr the and uo to date of signing.

extent to which our procecures are Capabra of :

‘ e ‘ . . o i We assesseo the suscectinbibyy of the Lroup's
detecting irregularities, inciuding fraud is detailed :
. o P financial statements o materia, misstaternent,
nelow. However, the pnimary responsiol 'ty for the :

. . ‘ nciuding haw fraud might occur by holding a
orevertior and detection of fraud rests witn both d \“A. y neding

discuszion within tre eudit team which ncluded
those charged with governance of the entity a~ad

marnagement. « idenufization of relzted carties,
Cur approach was as follows : » understanding the Group's busiress, the
. i coniro. ervircnment and assessing the irherent
We obtained an understanding of the legal ana : i ‘ ’ g )
: risk for relevant assertions at the significant
regulatory framewaorks that are applicable o the ‘
: accourt level including ciscussions with
Group and determined that the most sigrificant : )
i , Ciepe G mManagernent ¢ gain ar Lnderstanding of
are those (~at reale to reporting framewaork (IFRS 8 . e stat ; h
- : nose areas of the financal statements whic
192 and the Comoamies Act 2006; ; o
: were susceptible o fraud, as identified by

= We ungerstood how Fern Trading Lirmited i management; and

comp.yng with those frarmewarks by making o
» conszidered the controls that the Group nas

established © address nsks identified by
the entity or that otharwise seek O prevent,

enguiries of maagement, those charged withs
governance ard those responsble for legal
and compl ance procedures as to any fraud sk

‘ o ‘ : deter or defect fraud including gaining an
frammework within the endty, including whether : o . cing geiming
. . ‘ : urcerstanding of the entity level controis ana
a formal fraud risk assessment is completed We T ST .
: policies that the Group apoiies,

cerroporated our enguiries through review of the
foliowing documentation or performance of the o Based on this understandmng we des'gned our
foliowing procedures: audt procedures t¢ identify nen-compliance

with sLch laws and reguiancns. Our procedares

+ obtaining an Jrderstanding of entity-leve! ] ‘ ‘
nvalved test ng of sournal entries througn

controls and considerirg the influence of the ;

contral ervironment Journal analytics tools, wih focus o1 manusl
COntrol ervircnment;

siinih
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3L LOVERNANCT

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Fern Trading Limited

fournalts, large or unusuat transactions, or journals

meeting our defined risk criteria based on our

understanding of the business: tested accounting

estimates for evidence of management bias;
enquiring of members of senior management
and those charged with governance regarding
their knowtledge of any non-compliance

or potential non-compliance with laws and
regulations that could affect the financial
statements; and inspecting correspondence,
if any, with the relevant licensing or regulatery
authorities,

A further description of our responsibilities for the
audit of the financiat statements is located on the

Fimancial Reporting Council's website at
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This
description forms part of cur auditer's report.

[ B IR TN S Ty Ry 3
PRIt o s e

This report is made solely 10 the Company’s
members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3
of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit
woerk has been undertaken sc that we might state

to the company's members those matters we are
required to state to them in an auditor's report and
for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the company
and the company's members as a body. for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

Fonsbzs fc..L_lQ

Michael Kidd (Senior statutory auditor)

for and on behall of Ernst & Young LLP, Statutory
Auditor

Beifast

20 December 2022
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Group profit and loss pocount for the year snded 30 June 2022

2022

Not £000

f('D

{restated)
2021

£000

Tu;-m;ver . e 8 S o 41830

Cost of saes (411?,883}

Gr-oss proﬁt 300,947

Admiristrative expense (258 251!

[N

Operatmg proﬁtl(loss) 42,696
Other ncome 1 3,550

Income from otrer fixed asser investmeants 5,249
Snare of eperating profitir joint venture -
Proft on disposal of subsic anes and joint venture & 29,533
Otrer interest recevable and smilar Income & 130
\rwrmm Payadle ana sirm lar charges £

Proﬁtl(loss} before taxation . 47,604
Tax on Uroﬁu 15s) 7 (16 294}

Proﬁtl(loss) for the hnancml year 31,310

Attributable to Fern 37,932

Minority interest S les22)

sassae

425,302

(221,277]
204,025
{231,844}

(27.819]
5454
445
1755
28,568
897

{36.067]

(22,663)
(8 249)
(31 Oli

(27.005]

(4.0G7)
(31012}

Adresulis relate 1o continu nig activities Note 26 details the prior neqad adiustments,

Group statemant of comprahensive incomea for the year ended 30 June 2022

(restated)
2021

E000

Pmﬁtl(loss) forthe fmanc:alyear T 31,310

Other comprehensive income
Moverments 'n cash flow hedges 77,985
oy

Fore gn e

Total comprehensive income for the year 127,856

Attributable to
« Owners of the parent 134,478

* Non-controlling interests  lee22y

127 856

‘am L’)CC; on ret ramlat'fﬂ O su iuldlorlf 18,561

B0

44,983

S

Other comprehenswe income for the  year 96,546 ,

17645
(4 OO?)
13 638
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Group balance sheet as 2t 30 June 2022

JUNE 2022

{restated)
2022 2021
E'OOO £ 000
leed assets w o T
Irtangible assats i 557,708 576,739
Tangible ass S 1,893,430 1.581 687
!r" estments i 35,452 11,000
S 2486590 2169421
Current assets S
Stocks 1 184,479 94 711
Debiors tncluding 1381 (2021 F16 Tmy) 13 623,161 598,002
dug after more thar ore y
Cash at bank ard v »ard Il 256, 415 1772478
. .  1,06s 055 R 865,191
Credttors "ar;-ounts falimg due wnthm one year 7 14 7 (256 152) ““““ t?b‘ 059)
Net current assets ~ sorees 663,132
Total assets less current liabilities 3,208,493 2,832,553
Creditors: amounts lailmg due after more than oneyear 15 (992 425) : V(“QQE.;?,SQ)
Prov;snoﬁé for llabulmes 7 - (52 620) VE‘-‘»l.SFV’Z)
Netassets 2,219,448 | 1887842
Capital and reserves
Callea up share capia 1z 161,662 145,676
Shdrs prerium acaount 364,882 173118
rrerger reserye 1,635,569 1440257
Cash flow hedge resere 63,006 (14,979)
Proﬁ‘ an d DS ATCOUN! (2, 770) 136,049
| 2,222,349 1884121
h 2.901) 3721
Cap:tal empioyed """ 2 219,448 -1,887,842

Note 26 details the prior perod adustnents

These consohdatea finarcia. siatements or cages 259

6 Decerrber 2022 and are signea on tner behall b

PS Latham
Direcrtor

Fegistered rumber !
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2022 2021
Mote £000 £:000

sttt Shm Pt EERT s R R BT

Fixed assets‘

13 2,539,978
2,539,978

et

Cestorns i3 39,888 50,383
Tash at hank and 0 hand 1 6,422 1523
46,310 51,906

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 14 (449) (22.924)

45,861 28982

2,585,839 2145348

Net assets 2585839 2,145,348

Capital and reserves

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

[
ol

161,662 149676
Share prerrium account 364,882 173118
terger reserye 1,986,457 1,791,145
rrofit and loss accournt 72,838 M314O9

Totalshareholders’funds 2145348

Called up share capital

The Company has elected to take the excmption under section 408 of the Comparies Act 2006 not to
present e Company profit end loss acoourt. Tne profit for the financizl penod dealt with in the financial
staterents of the Company was £236 742 000 (20271 loss of £157,504 000,

These fnanca statements on pages 35 1o 92 were zpproved oy the Board of directors on 16 Decermber 2022
ard ae signed on ther behalf by.

PS Latham
Director
Reqgistered number 12601636
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Group statament of changes in equity for the year endad 30 June 2022
Called up Share Merger  Cash flow Profit Total Non- Capital
share premiurmn reserve hedge and lass share- controlling employed
capital account reserve account holders' interest (restated)
{restated) {restated) funds
{restated)
£'000 £000 E'000 £'ODB £'000 £‘000 E’DGO £ 000
28435 ~ 1635569 163 837) 141,185 1668,982 4570 L678,552
- - - 3875 13,825 17703 - 17703
?r' ;’l:f 35 o : 138435 ~ 1635569 159.9€2) 1273561 1,688,685 9577 1,696,255
SUZ0 restgie)
o o e e - - - 27005 (27005 4.907; (31.012)
- ~ 44 GE3 - 44983 - 44983
1323 {323 - {333}
- - 44 983 (223) 44,650 - 44,650
- A4 GEE [27.33& 17645 (4,007 12,638
- - - 1871 1,821 1.842) 1
- (195,312} - 25,312 - - _
tre ses 172118 - - - 184,803 - 184803
{444) - - - (6,399 (6,843) - (6.843)
43576 173118 1440257 {14,979) 136,045 1884121 721 1887842
Balance as at
13uty. 20 21 ( 149,676 173,118 1,440,257 (14,979) 136,049 1a84,121 3721 1,887.842
Profit for the
financial year ~ - -~ - 37.932 37,932 16.622) 31,310
Changesin market
value of cash flow ~ - - 77,985 - 77,985 - 77,985
hedges
Foreigh exchange
toss on retranslation - - - - 18,561 18,561 - 18,561

of subsidiaries

1
i
i

i
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2022

Called up Share Merger Cash flow Profit Total Non- Capital
share premium reserve hedge and loss share- controlling employed
capital account reserve account holders' interest
funds
£'000 £000 £000 £000 E'000 £000 £000 £000
Other
comprehensive - - - 77,985 18,561 96,546 - 96,546
income/{expense} for
the year
Total comprehensive
income/{expense} for - - 77,985 56,493 134,478 {6,622) 127,856
the year
Utilisation of merger - 195,312 - (195,312} - - -
reserve
Shares issued during _
the year 191,764 - - - 203,750 203,750
Balance as at
20 June 2022 EGLG&Z 364,882 1,635,569 63,006 {2,770) 2,222,349 (2,901) 2,219,448
Note 26 details the pnor genod adustments.,
Company statement of changes in eguity for the vear ended 30 June 2022
Called Share Merger Profit Total
up share premium reserves and foss shareholders’
capital account account funds
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 E'000

Balance at incorporation - - -
Loss for the financial year - - - 1157,504) {157,504}
Lltilisation of merger reserve - - (195,312} 195,312 -
Total comprehensive income - - 165.3:2) 37808
Shares issued during the year 150,120 173,118 1986457 -
Shares cancelled during the year (444} - 16,399)
Balance as at 30 June 2021 149,676 173,118 1,791,145 31,409
Profit for the financial year - - - 236,741
Utitisation of merger reserve - - 195,312 {195,312}
Total comprehensive income - - 195,312 41,429 ;
Shares issued during the year 11,986 191,764 - -
Shares cancelled during the year - - - -
Balance as at 30 June 2022 161,662 364,882 1,986,457 72,838 ?{ 5
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Group statement of cash flows for the yesr ended 30 June 2842

,,,,,,,,,,, B e S

Cash flows from operatmg actmtles

AR R s P g g P

Prof/lios.s) “or tre farcial year attritutanle 1o the owners 27 the parent

Adjustments for:
lax on profu/iloss)

Interest recewabie and simlar incomes

Iriorest payabie and other aimitar 2rarges

Proft an disposa, of subsidiznes ang jointventure
Imcome frorm ont vaniure

Irecrre from fied asset investrents

Arearnsauon and rnparmaent of inargibie fxed assets

Deprecaton ANGInis fxed assels

Nor-cash stalf costs

Moverents on derivatives ana fore gr excrange
Ircresse nostock

lnoreasel/decroase in gebros

Incregseddacreasel v aredinors

MNon-controling mterests

Net cash generated from operatmg actl\ntles

Cash flows from investing activities

Furchase of subsidiary undertaor gs (rer of cash acoured
Sale of subsidiary undertaiungs and ot vantirn
Furchizze of tangivle asses

Purcrase of ntarc nle aszels

Furchase of urhsied nvestrents

Sale of unbsted rvesrmaonts

[Prerest meeiven

|r‘comr_> frorm wOP venture

Cash flows from hnancmg actlwtles
roceeds from francing
Irterest ooz

Repavments of 91arcrng

Proceeads from share 155 1

Net (decrease)lmcrease in cash and cash equwalents o

Clasm an@ fas” eddivalenis a” the pegmrirg of e

Cash and cash equwa!ents at the end of the year

37,932

7 16,294
5 (230}

£ 33,554
K {29,532)

(5,249)
45,762
5 101,802
3,040

{18,044)

(19,829)

31,022

{173,956)

1% {6,622)
25,853
41897

(%)

{52,377
101,778

(322,446)

{7.222)

(124,203)
14 105,000
< 130

(299 340)

201,719
(32,319)
(32,013)

15 203,750

341,137

83,694
172,478

243

TR v

w-(306 22*) "

1 26415

{restated)
2021

8,349
997
36,068
(28,568)
(1,755)
449
37704
54657
8.875
119,788}
15700
249,374
6,871
4,007)

341, 917

(221,987)
34,503
{110,457}
{275)
(29.617)
20,133
g9/

1 077

751

172478

Note 26 details tre pror penod sdjustments,
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Statement of accounting policies

LCompany information

Fern Trading Limited {the Company’) is a prvate cormipary irnited oy snares and incorporatad on L4 May
and. the United Kingdorm ard stered unde m"amy numiser
s at &th Floor, 33 Hﬁtbom Lonrgarn, England, ECLN ZHT.

2020 Tre (‘Of‘ﬂDa"U 15 corniciied in Engle
12601626 "he acdress of the reg stered off ce |

Statement of comptiance

The Groug and indwvidual iirancia: statements of Fern Trading Lrned rave been oreparm- in complance
wih Urited Kirngf;m Accodrt ng Standards, includ ng Financ.al Reporting Standard 102, "The Financial
Reportng Standard appucable in the United Kingdem and the Republc of ireland {FRS 1027 and the
Companies Act 2(}06

Basis of preparation of Hnanclal statements

The financial staterrents have been prepared on a2 going concers basis, uncer the historcal cost convention,
as mocified by tre recogrition of ertain financial assets ard liab'ltes rmeasur tfar value, and in
cocordance with the Compan'es Act 2006 ard applicable account rg standards in the United Kingdom Tre

a ol
principal accountng pol ces whicn have heen aopled cons'stently throughodt the year, are set out below,

'l

The consclidated Anancisl staterrents include the results of av subsidianes owned by Fern Trading Lirnited
as beted in rote .59 fthe annual financial statements Certain cormpanies oF these subsidiaries, wnich are
sted in note 239, have taker tne exempton from an audit for the year ended 20 June 2022 permitted oy
section 27SA of Camparies Act 2006 In order to aliow these subsidianes o ake the audit exempon, the

.

parert company has given a statutory quarantee, n I'ne with section 473C of Compan.es Act 2006, of all
tnP outstanding retliabilities ag at 30 Jure 2022,

Golng concarn

The Grouo's ana the Compary's business activties, together with the factors Likely to affect its future
develcpmenrt, performarce and posiiion are s2t oJt the Strategic Report or page: 4 0 14, The financisl
positon of the Group, its cash ficws, | qu.dwty positon and borrowng facilties are described in the financal
review on pages 23 to 27 The pnncipal risks of the Group are set out on pages 16 1o 13,

The Directors parform an annual going concermn review that considers the Groug's ability to mest its
financial obl'gations as they fall due, for a penod of at least twelve rmontns after tne date that the financial
statements have Been signed

Due to the chalienging market conditions maragerment have performed an assessrment to determing
whetner there are any material unceramties ansing that coula cast < gmﬁc* nt doubt on the ability of the
Group to continue as a going concern No significant 1ssues have been noted ard as a consequence, tre
directors believe that the Group is well placed to manage 1ts business risks successfully despite the current

uncertam economic cutlook




3
2

F
i

4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 202

Statement of accounting policies

In reaching this concius o the Directors have reviewed the fnancal !mpad cf {ne uncertanty on the

Group's batanice sneet, profit ard icss arnd cash flows with < Coconsideration gven to the fellowing
Araverse strese test was performed on tne base case forecast 1o ascerian what scenanos would result in

risks to e Groups lign idi?y pos o The test sihowes even in an uriikely scenario of a significant reducton

of revenue of 46%, trne Group = ac.e o sustain its cdrrent operat'cnal costs a~d meet all sabr-lues as they fa

£ oo

due for at feast a year from the date of sign ng thesze finrenc

al statermerts when utlising the available

fa 25 winin the Groun.

Tne Greup has a number of financing facilities trat contamn covenants requirng e Groug 1o maniain
specified dnarcial ratios an d comply with certair otber financ:al covenants. Trnese finencial covenants are
tested at least quarterly, ard, at the date of this report, the Groug = in complance with gll its friancial
covenants Stress fests o0 reasonably plausible scenanos such as & s:ignificant reduction in EBITDA of 84%
over ime nave been used 0 assest the covernant requirements for the al least the nex! twelve mont-s ard
all covenants have been forecast to oe met even under the stress test scerario, in the going concar genc

At 30 June 2022, the Groun nag aval.aole cash of £258m and headroom avaldabie of £441m incuding a
i
d

revolwnq credt facity of £270m Debt of E88m s due 1o mature in less man ane year, with the remander

of £956m payable in more than ore year The Groups ‘aclies, repayriert dates anc undrawn armounis are

set out ir Note 16 Loans ana Borrowings

Key accounting judgement and estimates have heen made wih considerator given to the current

economic oullook Key estimatas nclude loan recoveraoility, vaiuaton of wark in progress,

nong a2rd hedae

decomrnissioning prov-eicns moairment of goodwill and investmeants business comning

accounting. Details are set out on oages 50 1 51

Based on the above aszess tof current economic conaitons ana the wmoact on tre Growp's financia
358 Gan, Hguitity ants, the directors have cococuted thet the Grouo and Company has

adeguale resourc ir operaticnal £x stence {or the next 12 monihs Trus, :hey contnue w

adogt the gong concen basis of accounting in preparng the annaal frarca, statements

Exemptions for gualifving entitias under FRS 102

FRS 102 aliows a \,|Jr*i “ying ennty certair disciosure exemptions. subyect to certair condifons, whicn Pave

beern corpred witn, including ~otficatior of, ana nc cgection to, tne use of exemptions by the Company's

shareholders

Tre Company has aken advant

ge of the ollowing exempuons

from prepar rg a statemen: o cast flows, or the bas's trat ir

statement of casr flows, included i these firarcal starerner

Ao from the financial instrurmrent disclosures, regiared under FRS 102 paragrap=s 1135 to 11 484 and
aragrashs 12 26 10 12 23, az the nformat or: s provided N tne conscldaed fnznge. statament
dsclosares;

oy

n from discics ng the Company key mmanagement nersonnet compensaior, as recuired by FRS 102
caragraoch 337

: 55
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Statement of accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The conscligated financial statermernts include the results of Fern Trading Lirmited and all s subsidiary

undertangs made up to the sams accounung date Al intra-group balances, transactions, income and
expenzes a«e aeumimated in full o0 consoidation Tne resuits of subs.diary underiakings acquwed or dispased
of durng the perod are included or excluded fraorn the ncome statement from the effective date of

acguisition or disposal

Al urdertakings over which the Group exercises contral, being the power © govern tne firancial and
operating polices 50 a3 W obtain cenefts from their activines, are corsobidaed as subs diary urdertakings
Where a subsidlary has ditferent accounting policies 1o the Group, adustnents are made (o those
cubicidhary financal staterments 10 apoly the Group's account ng polices when preparng the consolidated
finarcal staterments,

Ary subsidiary

rdertakirgs or associates sold or acquired duning e year are included ug to. or from, tne
dates of change of co

ntrol or chan of sighificant infilence respectivel
4

Where “he Grouc has written a put coton over shares he'd oy a non-corroling interest, tne Groue
derecogrises tne non-conrolling interest and irstead recoarized contingent deferred consideration liabity
witnin other payaocles for the estimated amcunt iikely 10 be paid to the nor-controiling interest on axerd.se
of those opt ons. Tre residual amiount, regresenting the aiffererce berwsen any considerat or pard/payable
ard the non-cortroling interest's snare 0° net assels, s recognised as goodwill. Movements in the

estimated liatisty after inital recognition are recognised as goodwill.,

Foreign currency

i. Functional and presentation currency
The Group financ.al statemerts are presented in pound ster.ing ang rounded to thousands

The Company's funcional and presentaticnr currency 15 pouwnd sterling and rounded to thousands.

ii. Transactions and balances

Foreign currency trarsactions are ransiated into the functional currency wsing the spot exchange rat
the dates of the rransactions At eacnh period end foraigr currency maonetary iters are ranslated using
ciosing rate. Non-moretary iterms measured at historical cost are translated using the excharge rate a: the
date of the transaction and non-moneary tems measdred at far value are measured Jsing the excharge
rate wnen farr value was determined Foreign excharge gains and losses resulting from the sottlement of

s ar
q the

transachons ard from the trarslaton at period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and Lakilities
dencrminated i foreign currencies are recognised ir tie profit and oss account

All fore.gr excnange gaing and iosses are praserited in the proht and loss account within ‘adrmimisirativ
CXREnses

iii. Translation
The tracing res.lts of Group undert&kmgs are transiated into pouncs sterling at the average exchange rates
for the year "he assets and Yabilities of overseas ungertakings, including goodwill ana fair value adjusiments
arsing or acguizition, are transiated at the exchanga rates ruling at the year-end Exchange adjustments
ar'sing from the retranslation of opening ret investmerits and from the ranslation of the profits or losses

at average rates are recognised in 'Other comprenensive incomea’ and allocated to non-controiting interest

3% aporopriate.

SEeTrn L
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Statement of accounting policies

Turnover

The Group operates a number of classe: of pusiness Revenue is aarived by the fallowing

+ Energy
Turncver from the sale of electicity generated by solar farms, wind ganeraling assets, reserve power

plants ard biomass and landfill sites is recagnized on an accruas bass in the percd 1m which it i

generatea, Revenue from long-terrn government tacked offtake zgreements, such as the Renewable

Uhbligaton Certification (ROCT) scneme are accruad i the penoad rowh ch it ralat
EA

5 ta, Turmove- from the

rtitser by biomass ard landfili businesses is recogrised o pays.cal dispaich.

Turnover is recognsed when the significart nsks and rewards of cwnership of retirermeant properties have
passed 1o the buyer (on lega. ompl =n), the armoun: of revenue can be recognesed reliaily, and it s
prokatle that the econo™ic benefts associmted with the trarsaction wal flow (o the entity TArnover

aration recavad for heathoare services providen ntng normnal

course of business, and is shown nat of VAT Turncvor 12 recognisee tased on the date tne service 1s

Turncver rep nierest on loars p'uv ded o customers, ret of any value

added tax Loan rierest s recogrused on an accrual basis in une witn contraciual terrms of the can
agreement Arrangerment fees are soread over ne life of the lcan to which they reate.
+ Fiore

Turncver s recogrised at the far value of the consideration rec

ved for interner connectvity and related
IT services pravided r the normal course of Dusiness, and s shiown net of VAT Tumiover is recognised
bawed on the date the service s proviaed

« House bulding
Turnicver s recogrised on egat complencn of the sale of prﬂﬂ eriy, land and corrrmercia. spaces. urmover
from rousing asscaiation contracts i recogrizsed by reference o the va'ue of work complered as a

prooorbon of the total contract value.

Employee benefits
The Group provides a range of 2enefits 1o empoyees, inc.uding ansua. bonus arrgmgermes, oad rohday
arrangernents and def~eo contricution pension olans,

i. Short-term benefits
Shaort- terrn benefits inciuding holiday pay and other sirrlar non moretary benehis, are recogn:sed as an
CXDONEE N e pernod N whor tne seryce s recewved

ii. Defined contribution pension plan

L defired contnbutor pian s a pension plas ander wh on the Groug pays fred contnbut ons o 3

T

arate ertity. Once the contr bonons ~ave beer

"o further payment abligatiors

1
1]
o

The contrioytions are recogrised as Arncdnts rot oad are shownn

accruass in ihe balance sheel The assats o ine par a g ratey fro the Groun o indeperdently
aclmimistered furd
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iii. Share-based payments

Casr-settled cshare-nased payments are measured at fair value at the balance sheet date. Tne Group
recogn ses a hability a0 tne Calance shee: date hased an these far values, talung nto accouns the estimated
rumbar of urits that will actualy vest and the carrent prosortion of the vestng perod,

Changes in the value of tris liabiity are recogn sec in the income staemeant,

The Group has no ecuity-setted arrangements.

Finanre cosis

Finance costs are charged o the prafit and oss account over the term of the debt usirg tre effective
nterest metnod so thet the amount charged is at a constant rate on the carrying amaount [ssue costs are

D

initially recognised as a reduct anir the proceeds of the asscaiated cap-tal instrurmient and released 1o th
profit ard loss accourt over the term of the deb:

Current and deferred tax

Tax Is recognised Ir the statement of income and retaiced earnings, excapt tinat a change atinbutable to an

iterm of income and experse recodnised as other comprehersive incomre or to art item recognised dirgctly
egu ty 1s also recognized in cther comprehensive :ncome or directly it equity respectively

The current income tax charge 1s caiculated on the basic of tax rates and laws that have seen eracied or

substartively enacten by the balarce sheet cate in tne countrnes where tne Company operates and

generates \NCome,

De‘erred balarces are recognisec in ressect of all trming differences that nave originatec but not reversed

oy the Hala~ce sheet cate, excapt that

« Trerecogninon of deferred tax assets is imited o the extent that it «s probable that they wi'l be recovered
against the reversal of deferred tax Haoilties or other future taxable profits, and

« Any deferred tax balances are reversec if and whern all conaitions for retaining associates tax allowance
“Eve peen met

Deferred tax balances are not recagrised in respect of perrnanent differences except in respect of busiress
combinauons, when deferred tax is recogrised or the differences between the far values of assets acquired
and the future tax deductiors available for thern and t~e differences petween the fair values of lailities
acquired and the amount that will be assessed for tax Deferred tax s determined using tax rates and laws
that have been enacted or sunstaniively eracted by the balance sheet date.

Bisiness combinations and goodwill
Business combinaticns are accounted for by apply ng tne purchase method.

The cost of a business comaination s the fair value of the consideration given, baointies incurred or
assumed and the equity instrurmenis 1ssued plus the costs directly atiributaile € the business comnaton.
Where cantral 15 acnieved in stages the cost is the corsideration at the date of each transaction.

On acouisition of a business. far vatues arg attnbuted to the identifiable assets, lianilines ard contingent
babilities untass the fair value carnot be measured relatly, in which case the value is incorporated as
goodwill. Where the fair vaue of contingent lai:lities cannot be reliably measured they are disclosed
on the sarme basis as t {abilities.

other contingert
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Statement of accounting policies

Goodwll recegnised représents the excess of the far value and directly atrioutaile costs of the purchase

)

ongideration over the fair values 2 the Zroup's mterest ir tne ident Galkie net assets, teghilites ana
Qritin

o)

igent labiites acquirad.

&

n acauiztor, goodwiliis alocated to cash-genera e exgected to beneft from
e

~r

he comop-atior

Goodw il is amortsed over its e rad useful life which 1s geterm nec based on the estimatec lifesoan of
the assets acquired. Where tre Gfoup s unasle to make g reliable sestimate of uzeful ife, goodwillis

amartised over a panod Not ex:

ed'ng ten years Gooow 'l g rev

(D
<

d and assessea for mpairment
1

Ve
indicators on an anndel basis and any impairment is cnarged 1o th proﬁ

Tangible fixed assels

Tangibie fixed assets are stated at cost less deprec atior Depreciztion s provided st rates caculaed 10 write

CA
off the cost of fixed assats, l2ss trar estirmatea res’dual value, over ther expactad useful Uiy

commences rom the date ar assel s orought nto serv.ce Lang and assets in the course of construction

The estimarec usafu. Lves are as “cliows.

2lant and machinsry

Assets in the course of construction are sizted at cost, depreciated until they are
""" alabie for use
Where faciors, such as iechnological advarcement or changes in market pree. indicate that resicual value

or useful Ii'e Fave caanged, the resicual value, useful life or depreciation rate are amemdea prospectively to

reflect the rew circumstances. The assets are rev ewes o7 mpairment if the above facwors ndicaie that the

carrying amount may be imoaiced

Ciains and losees on disposals are determined by comparing the procesds with the carrying amcuni and are

recogrises within profit or (oss

1d accumidlated wmpawrment {05388,

assels

the deprec anle amount of the

o

Wl
D
O
=
P
Q
(o)
Lo
Q.
W
(%)
o)

Cevelopment rights relste to plan~rg cor
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Where factors, such as changes in market price, 1ndwcate tnat residual vaiue or useful life have ¢ hmg eq, the
resicdual value, useful sfe or amortsatan rate are amended prospectively 1o reflect the new crrcumstances.
The assets are reviewed for imparment if the zbeve faciors ridicate that the carrying amount rnay
be impaireg
Leasses

\tincept on the Group assesses agreemer*ts triat transfer the right to use asses The assessment considers
whetrer the arrangerment iz, or cortaing, g lease based on the susstance of tne arrangement and wheather
the leaie snouic be classified as eitrer g finance {ease or an ouerating iease

Leases that do not transfer all the risks and rewards of cwnersrio are cassifed a5 operating (£asss,
Fayrrents under cperatirg leases are charged to the profit ana (oss accourt on a straight-line basis over the

Investmants

The Company rolds investrrents in a subsidary at cast less accumulated impa rrent losses Fan
irnpairmenrt (085 15 subsequenty revarsed, the carrying amourt of the irvesiment is increasec 1o the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but orly o the extert that the revised carryirg amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that woeuld have been determned had no impairment 0ss bean recognised in pricr
periods. A revercdl of arimpairment loss is recognised in the proht and loss account,

Cash
Casn includes cash in nand and deposits repayabie o dermara Restrcted cash represerts cash for whichk
the Group does not have immediate and direct access or for which regulatory or legal regudirerments restric

the Lse of the Cas

Stocks

Raw rmaterials, spare parts and consumabies are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable va.ue Where
necessary, a provisicn 1s made for otsolete, slow-rmoving ana defectve stocx Cost s determined on the
frat-n, first-out (F.FG) metoo,

Fuel stocks (M3M and litter} are valued on an average cost basis over one to two monti-s andg provision for
unusanle littar is rev.ewes maonthly ard aspuaed to cff-site stock.

Fuel stock of straw nas teen valued at the Fistorical cost per tonne of straw. A provision for unusable straw
is idertified on an individual stack hasis and is reviewed monthly Stocks are used om a Mrst in, first out
["F.FO") bas s oy age of straw,

Stocks of ash at Filbrophios are valued at the lower of cost ard net realisable value to the Croup.

Stocks of property development work 0 progress ("WIP') are stated at the lower of cost anc net realisable
value. Cost comprses direct matenals and, where acplicable, direct labour costs and those overheads that
nave been incurred 17 bringing the stocks to ther present locations ana condition.
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Statement of accounting policies

At ezch reporting cate, an assesament is made for ropairment Any excess of the carrying amownt of
stocks over its estimaed seiu
through the profit and less accourt Reversale of imparment iosses are alzso recogrised in the profit and

Ng ENIce less Costs to compiete ana seil is ecognised as ar rrgairment loss

less account

Acerued income

Accrued imcome on loans s caiculated at tre rate of .nterest set out in tne can conracts Energy income s

an gererated.

arcrued oves the penod N wrich it has &

Deferred income

. Deferred ncorre s

ﬁ
[ul}
]
—

Ceferred income is recogn’'sed in accordance wih the terms set out is the con
released (¢ ne proft and loss account in the perod o which it relates

Financiat instruments

wh

rr\

5 H02 e respect of frangial instruments

ne Group 3s chosen o gdopt Sectons 11 anc 12 o ©

inancial assets

5

Baste inancial assets, includ rg trade and other rece vab.ez and cash ard cank balarces are mitizly
recognised at ransachion prce, unless the zrran \;;Lﬂ ert consttutes & frenong fransacton, whera the

rransaction is measured at tne prezent value of the future receipss discounted at 2 market rate of interest

Such assets are subieqeently carried at amrortised <ost using the effective nrerest metnod

tthe end o

ured at armortised <ast are assessed for objective
Carying

m b

as
ce of \rmpavmer‘.-_‘ If an asset s impa\red 5158 the diﬁerer'ce sebyeern the
f -

il
]
]
]
o
=
o
-
(2
i

vide
amount ard the present vaue o
rate. Tre imnairmert 1693 18 recognised i prefit or oss

Otner Tnancial azse’s, ‘ncluding investmeants in eguity instruments whicn are not sussidiaries, assocates or
joint vertures, are initially measured at fair value, which 1s normally the fransaction prce Suach aszsets are

subsequenty carried at fair vawe and the 2 far vawe are recegnsed ir preht or loss, except that

investrments In 2guity instrurments puslcly raded and waose fair values cannot be measu

relagly are measured aft cost less :mpairrr@nt‘

Fnancial assets are derecogn sed when (&) ine contractual nghis to tne cash flows from the assel expra or
are settled, or {b) susstartially all the nisks ard rewards o° tre owrershic of the asset are trar

another party or [c) control of the asset nas oeen fransferred (o anotrer parly wro has the oractiza’ abity
to urilaterally sel the ascet 1o an unretated trird party without impos Ng adaitiona. restrchions

Flancial liabilities

Bazic financia Jdabiities, incwd ng rade ard otner cayalb.es, bank ioars, loars frorm ellow Crouao comoanies

ang DTEIEWSHCG shares, are 3!“\(\8.1"/ recoCrISen sl ransaction cnce, urless tne :rrargarﬁent constitutes a

Francing trarsacucn, where tre deot ratrament s razsurad at the gresert value o the “uture receipts

discouried at 2 mar«et rate of interest

red af the assels cngimal effective nterest




A8 . RV

N2

4 | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 30 JUNE 2072

Statement of accounting policies

Delit nstruments are subseqguently carded at amortised cost, usirg the effect ve interest raie metrod Fees
paid on the estatliskbmenrt of toan facilities are recognised as tranzaction costs of the loan 10 the extent that
it is probaple tnat some or all of the facility well be drawn aown. In this case, the fee is deferrec until tre
draw-down occurs To the extent tnere s no evidence that 8 probable triat somre or all of the facility well
be ¢
of the facility o whch it relates

drawn dowr, the fea s capttalised as a ore-payment for uquidity sérvices and amortised cover the percd

Trace payaples are octigations to pay o1 goods or services tnat have been acguired in the ordinary course
e

of bu"\r' 55 from suppliess Accounts payable are classified as current labylties & caymenrt s dae within one

yoor of lass. 'f not, they are presentad as non current habities Trade payacles are recognized initially at

franzacticon orice and subsequently meazured at amortised cost using the efeciive interest metnod.

Finarcial habiltes are derecogriced wher the sability i extinguisned, that 1s when the contractual obl gation
5 cischarged, cancelled or expires.

Provisicrs are made where arn event has taken place that gves the Grous a legal or constructive obligation
that prooabuy requires settierrent by a transfer of economic nerefit, and & relaiie estimate can be made of
the arnount of the abligatan

n expense to the profit and oss accourt 1 tne year that the Group becornes
tthe hest estmate at the palance sheeal date of the expendiure
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king into account relevant risks ang uncertant

o
in

Hedging

The Groug applies hedge accouniung for trantach ors er‘:tered irto to marage the cash flow excosures of
borrowings. interast rate swups are held to manage the irterest 7ate exposures and are des.gnated as cash
fFow hedges of floating rate borrowings Changes in the fair values of gervatives designated as cash fiow
Fedges, and wnich are eﬁeftwve are recogrises directly in egquity. Any ireffectiveness in the Fedging
relaticnship (bemng the excess of the cumuiative change in farr value of tne hedging instrurent since
ncept'on of the nedge over the cumulative change in the fair value of the hedged item since rception of
the hedgel 1s recognized n tha profit and loss

The gain or toss recognised in other comprehensive income 15 reciassified to the profit and 1oss in
accordance witn the cash flows of tre hedged item Hedge accountirg is discontinued when the hedging
nstrument expifes nao ongar meets the hedgimg criterig, the forecast ransact-on s nio longer highly
procanle, the nadged debt instrument is derecognised or the hedging instrument s terminated

Share capital

Crdinary shares issueg by the Grodp are reccogn'sed ir equity at the value of the proceeds received, with the
excess over nominal value being credited to snare premium.

Hon-controliing nterests

Non-contwoiling interests are veasured at their proporfionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets
at the date of acquisition

wv“ve 58 Ygtﬁ A% B
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e with rRS 102 requires the use of Certanr critica
accounting estirmates \t 3l50 requires Mmanagement to exercize jLdgement In appiyng e Company's

accountng po Tates and judgements are continually evaluated and are basad on hisiorica.
experence and omner factors, including expectations of future events that are beleved to pe reasonacle

under tre circumstarces, The key estirnates and juagements in preparing these financial siatements are

i. Recoverability of loans and advances to customers {estimate)
Loans ard aavances 1o cusiomers, ncowuding associated accrusd income balances, are reviewed 4

Impa rment on 2 guerterly pasis. In cons derirg the need for a provision, managerment determine their bes:
estmate of the expected future cash flows ©n 3 case by casc basis. As ths estimate ralies or & certain
numiber of assurmpuons about future events which may difer from actual cutcomes, ncluding tne

borrower's ability 1o repay interest ane cap-tal dus in future perods, this gives rise to judgement as to
whether there 15 a shoertfall between the carrying value and thre fair vaiue of the dabtor balance

Management note that prov $:ons 2ga: : 1 advanicet is a entical estimate and have therefore

performed sensitivity arialy sens tvity aralysis conclude trat g change
of +/- one per cent in the armount provided against tne estimated aiance at risk would have resultec in
£3em eisimore expenditure being charged 10 the incore statement cunng the perod Ses note 13 for the

carrying amount of the debtors and provisions at 30 June 2022
= ~

ii. Value of property development work in progress {'WIP') (estimate)

Property developmenrt WIRP s reviewsd for 'mpairment on a per odic basis Ir considering the need for a
provision, mansgemoent deterrring ther best estimaic of tne recoverab e value Maragement engage
exgpert extarna: valuer to proviae key assurmplions about future events which rmay differ from aciLal
outcormes, nouding property valuations, rae of sa.et and cevelopmeant costs

Trese estimases give rise to Judgenent as to whether there is a shortfan belween the carrying velue and the

30 June 2022, Post year end, maragenreant have rev'ewsd the
assumiptions used 1o catermine the vaiue of property gevewprment WIP and have observed no charges in
performance that woud imgact the vaiuation as at the 30 Jung 2022 See note 12 for the carrying amount
of the property development WIP.

iii. Purchase price agreement (Australian entities) (judgement)
The Group owns two energy gererahng subsidaries in Ausiraka whicn have entered mto purchase or

“
m

agresments (PPAS] in 2018 and 2021 The PPAs include a contract for aifferences "CfD" wrerehy the
g ¥

supsidianes pay/rece ve amounis from the customer basec on tre differercas between a fixed seling prce
and the aciual price for elecinaty sola to tne Austrzlian erergy market The directors oelieve e contract

Jtside tme scope of FRS 107 sectior 12 as s for na sale of 2 non-Snancia iterr ara tre Zi0 s typical for

such arrangerments. Therefore 1t is being accountag for Jrder FRS 102 secuon 22 &5 5 revenue contract wir

varable consideraton, rather than reva.ung the ertre contract to "a'r value.

iv. Business combinations (estimate}

The cost of 3 nus ness combinauon s the far value of the —onsiderzier gven, labilities ircurred pius the
Costs direciy attnbutanle o the ousiness combinat on. Fair vaile of these cormbmnations és a key estimate
and maore deta’ls are proviced on pages 45 1o 46
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v. Decommissioning provision (estimate)

The provision for decommissioning costs is measured at management's sest estimate of the present value
of the expenditure reguired to zettie the futurg cibligation to return and on which there are operatioral wind
and solar farrms, otz onginal condihon Tne level of the provisions is determined o & significant degree by
the esurnation of future aisrmantlirg and restoration costs, as well as the tming of disrnantemeant

Wind Farms (estimate):

Maragerren: note Nat daecommissioning srovsions 5 a cnticat estimate ana have therefore performed
senzitivity arawysis The results of the sengitivity analysiz conclude that a change of +/- one per ce~tin the
discourt rate woud nave resultad 0 E2 1rn incroasc/docreass in the provision, Sco nom 17 for the provision
recogrised at 30 June 2022 Maragement utilize external experuse 1o provics an ectimated cost o
dismantle and have usec a discourt rate of 2% to reflect the tme in valLe of meney and the rsks spetihic
to the chligation

Australian solar farms {judgement}:

The Group is requted to restore the leased premises of the sciar farm w© treir onginal conaition at the end
of the iease term. A provision was prevously recogrised, however 11 the current year this judgemnent has
been reassessed ana managemernt bel\eve the lessor may wish to e ther take tiie of the assets for aithier
conunued use or to realse vawe through selling the assets and a5 such do not believe that an outflow iz
probanie to setrle this restoration othigaton,

UK Solar (estimate}:

During the year, a third party performed ar assessment of the base cost of the decomm ‘S:;\C’“\"]g of the
Groups UK scar farms. The findings have wesuited in matenal change in the cost esumate and therefore 3
prov.sior has peen recognised for the first timie on some s s The impact has resulte J ina provision beirg
raised for £18m to the balance sheet decorrmussioning habiity and fixed assels. t 30 June 2022 there is
ro mpact on the profit and loss. Sites not affected are aadressed below

UK and French Solar (judgment):

Maragement believe that g ven the nature of these particular assets, tre lessor rmay wish 1o either take ttle
of the assets for either cortinued use or to realise value througn seiling the assets and as such do nor
believe irat an outflow 15 probabie to settie this restoratton oblgaton. Management w ll continue @ Mmonite:
the situation at each balarce sneet date.

vi. Impairment of goodwill and investments (estimate)
The vaiue of gooawill held oy the Group and investiments in sutsidiary undertakings held by the Company
s reviewed arnually for impairment. 'h: recoverability of tress baiances is corsidered with reference 1o the
present value of the estimated future cash flows Thase calculahions use cash flow project’'cns whicr extend
forward forecast business performance together with assumptions surrcunding the expected Ufe of the
asset, exterrally prepared forecasts and valuations, ard any adjustiments required to the discount rate (o take
accoun: of business risk The estimated present value of these future cash flows s sensitive 1o tne discount
rate and growth rate used in the calculation, all of which require management's judgement “esting of the
carrying vaile has been performed during the year, which Fas involved several scenarios being modelled
Based on this tesung ana the resulting imparment recognised on investiments, management believes there
15 sufficient headroom 0 support the value of goodwill and investments in subsidiary entitigs.

Managerment note that imparment of goodwill and Invesiments is a cntical est mate and have therefore
performed sen stm\y ara Ue or the provision. The resulls of the sensiivity analysis corciude that a chan
of +/- o1e per centin the amount provided agains: the estimated balance af risk would have resulted in
£5.4%m less/more expenditure being charged to the ircome statement during the period. See note 8 for

1]
[

the carrying arncunt of the gocdwill ard rvestments at 30 June 2022
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I orover

Analysis of turnover by category

2022
£000

Lending actwities

Erergy operations - solar, reserye power and wind

Lnergy operations — diomass and landfll

Heatthcaro coeraticns”
Home bunding

Fibre op

e

“az,a04
365,958
223,526
45,978
25,034
8,930
711,830

175,820
141,826
42,266

4,838

425302

Included inncorme rom Heslihcare operatic
ard L2858 6m (2021 £31 Zrmyin relas on to sarvice

enderes

Analysis of turnover by geography

R b e v wa s n amamucu amh asd B £ A a bk b hadadad dadad ditiad 9 ER

United

Eurcpe

2022

603,911 h

84,433
23,486

2021 ELL Zrn) retating o tne gala of retirement viliage unis,

2071
384799
31,893
5,610

Loog

,,,,,,,,,,,,, ST T T 1830 425,302
Other income
2022 2021
£000 EQ00

and nsuran

3,550

9,454
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Pul

Thkis is stated after chargingfloredit ng).

(restated)
2022 2021

£000 E£0Q0

TR, % R hety

Amortisaton of ntangihie assets inote §) 37,849 37704
Impai-ment of irtanagible assets foie 8 7,913 - :
Cepreciaton of nmsible assets (note 9) 101,802 84,697

Auditors remuneration Company ard the Group's corselidaicd

\ 45 146
finarcial statements

Auditors remuneration - audit of Company's s.absdanes

Auditors” remmunerahion — non-await services

Andirons remmuneration — E Comphiance services

Cifference on foraigr exchance

Operatng iease renas

81%
246
482
7,772
13,783

1,134
513
672

4402

7502

Naote 26 detals the prior penod ad ustments,

2022
£000

2021
£0600

v e

Wanes and salaries

Social secunty cast;

Othier persion oS

b a2 e o e

85,432
7,041

95,706

3,233

41,383
%809
1676

46868

The Group provides a defired contnbution schemes for its employees in the UK. The amount recogn:sed as
nexpense for the definad contrbuton scheme is shown in the tak.e above

The monthly average number of persons employed by the Group during the year was:

e Satrned i B At S AR Do Rt s R LI SRR SemAn

Production
Admurestration

Direrio

2022
Number

2021

Number

1,032
631
3

1666

e e ar

699

348

3
1050

The Company Fad one errpioyee other than Cirrectors durning the penod ended 30 June 2022 (2021 none),
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-

F T T T

L“mowme P55

it h o femess AasndBhadadRRRRKNNY LMAWOESKENSEE 3 0 whe W vaw oo

2022
£000

2021
£'006

163

During the year no pension cantricutions were made in respect of the direclors (2021 nonej.

The Group has no other key manageent (2021 nonel

R T L

A number of subst ies of trne Group op@rare ac
employees render servicas in excharge for

valuatior of the undaer ying subsiziary Toe ‘gir vail
reporting date and at the settierqent cate. The far

of exoense recogrised takes Into accoun: e be

casr-settied LTIP to qualify'ng empioyees, wher

12 of the labiity for the awards mads 1s mea

-

value 15 recognised over the ves

O’

st avala

vest under the service and pertormance conditions under J/II’?CI each awar granteg

Cash-settled share-based payment transactions with employees

e ,r‘q ubt .md\r‘q ba\armr

Cranted dun fals} *r‘e jesite!

Closing outstandmg balance

2022
Number of

b ERSCHE G CRE BEYME SRS ERERERAYEE RERSED CRLAVES G RHY X 0 % %W U mph % L i 8 a s s

1914751

1, 763 553
3 678 314

tirg peried

ety

ash tre amaunt of wnich 15 determined by referenice (o ne
sured at each
The amrcunt
e estimate of the nurnber of Lrits expected to

2021
Number of
awards

e & g AR

1.540,00C

1914 751

Tre tctal charge for

he year was £3,133,000 (2021

liatitty of £2, 407608 included withirn creditors greater than one year 12021 21, 334.000)

& -

Interest receivable and similar income

g SR e

=t o caﬂk dedr“ o)

Inte

2022
£000
130

£1 334,G600) and at ne 20 June 2022 there was a

2021
£000

CeR Taw bRemize % wmexd ame ¥ish % e oR3IuheRRRNETIH UL INESAOANE IR b 8 Sun apay tav v nr

8997

Interest payable and similar expenses

Irierest on Drrwk jeleldte]

Arrariicanion of msue 203t on Dark borrowings

{Front

Aoss on dervatve irancia nstrurrenris

2022
£000

2028
£ OOO

© % e sEaSATEEah AT ENAMENRS TIIIN SRS ANVEY CRERTE ¥ 0 tEwme w

32,192
2,597
(1,235)

33,554

34,378
1103
587
7376,0687

i
i
i
i
i
i
i
i
|
i
i
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Filooo o

a) Analysis of charge in year

{restated
2022 2021
o N £'000 £ FJO")
Currenttax: S T
S corporation tax charge on proftiloss) for the year (297} 1,648
Adjustments in respect of prios paroads 3,196 (2.866)
Furmcﬁ tax. )ufff recd 5 641 -
Total current tax on q .- rnd} 8540 (1218‘
Deferred tax:
Orngination and reversal of iming differences 6,227 2074
Agjustrments in respect of pric: per ods (3,741} (3.998;
5 268 ll 491
o o 7754 9567
Tax éﬁarge on pfoﬁfl(lbrsé)hbn ordinary activities o D o 16,294 h 8,349

b} Factors affecting tax charge for the year

The tex assessed for the year iz ~igher (2021 nigher than the standard rate of corporation tax in the LK of

19% (2021 19%) The differences arg expiained beow:
{restated)
2022 2021
SEAE P TOSTEOET. D PRE FE R § R oY ANE T et mamiz e rmesna g TRiT pous £‘o°o E.OOO
;;o}ltlit;;;) ;:;for:‘t;x o u o ‘ 47,604 (21,170)
Proftflloss @ ¢ ; ar
et Bl
Effects of.
Expenses not deductibie for tax puiposes 11,723 16,076
Otrer effects {868} 1022
incoarne not taxable for tax purposes (8,102) {8,351
Adjustmems in respact of prior pencds {545} (6,865}
Eﬂec's ’JT arige |r taxretes 5 041 11,489
Totai tax charge for the yeaf - S ' 16,294 8,349

¢) Factors that may affect future tax charge

The Finance Act 2021 enacted on 10 June 2021 increased the main rate of UK corgoration tax frorn 197 1
25%, effecuve 1 Apnl 2023, Deferrec taxes on the balance sheet have been measured at 25% (2021, 25%)

which represents the future corparation tax rate that was enacted at the balance sheet date.

MNote 26 delalls the prior penod adiustments
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
&8

Software Goodwitl Development Total
{restated) rights

OB e e £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
cost @ e SR B T AR PRI EA £5% AcE B TASERR R R et 35 TR 35 3 RS S keR che & bttt A 1 e b o
At 1 July 2021 (restatad) 964 726,602 10,216 737,782
Acguired through business - 30,042 4058 54,100
combinatons inota 27}
Adohitons 2125 - 1,040 5168
Dizposals - (21,118) - (21,118}
f_;, nn raru(‘,u Ml - 7,930 - 79JO
At 30 June 2022 S - 3089 - 743 456 . 15,314 o 761 859 AV
Accumulated amort:satmn o 7 7 . ‘
At Suly 2021 estared) 107 159,902 1,634 161,043
Cleposas - 12.452) - [2.462)
Loss on transiatan - (192) - 1182
lrrpanrrent - 7.913 - 7.913
C‘ for the year 12 37 514 523 5f 849
At30 June2022 " s1s 202475 1557 204451
N;{Bo;k";,;lue o R T A 8 25 S S £ e s € £ A et e -
At 30 June 2022 2,970 540,981 13,757 557,708

30 Jue /U/. lr eslatec‘.] 857 566,700 G182 576,735

The gan or translauon of foreign currer

dencminated -;-c-odw'tt s recogrised In other cormprencrsive
ncome. Arroctization of goodwil. g ot

oy
gea to admimisratan Cosis.

]
[®]
(]
%
st}
D
O
M

Details of the subsidiares acquired cuning the year endec 30 June 2

Surng the year the group disposed of £ wing farms in Firland, as a re
armoriisat on was recognsed in the curent year and £19 Im of gocawil was ¢
sale recogrised 'n the preft and loss in relalior oo this tranzaction was E28m

imparment of £79ra has been recognised o1 goodwil (2021 ronel,
Aoy agsets nave oeen o edged as secuty for laciities at vear end {2021 nore)
The Cempany had no imtangile assets at 30 June 2022 (2027 none

Note 26 details the oror penod adusimeants
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
G T LR

Land and Power Plant and Network Assets under Total
buildings stations machinery assets construction {restated)
(restated)
A1 July 2021 restated] 8531 317467 1685437 27288 43,277 2.092,000
Add.rors 829 1536 72647 60462 238,006 574480
foaee o e 1,308 - 51344 - 57563 110,315
EXftar value Tovernent - - 365 - 3,294 3662 3
Tranisfers - &8 1,066 33,936 (32,070 -
1135 - {75.951) - - (76 066)
10533 319071 1745911 118,686 310170 2,504,371
Accumulated depre::atlon o S S T
ATl July 27321 4410 30,655 414,559 1,290 - 516,318
Crarge (o the y2ar 183 17130 81141 3,348 - 101,802
hiepasals - - 182 (221, - {403;
FX movernect - - {(776) - - (776)
At30 June 2022 4,593 107189 494,742 4417 - 610941
etboorte T A AU . e et : ottt
At 30 June 2022 5,940 211,882 1,251,169 114,269 310,170 1,893,430
Ar 20 SuLn 21 rostated o 4121 227408 1,280,878 25,998 43,é77 1,581.6é2

Included within tangible assets are cap taised finance cosi directly attnbutabe to bringing the asset into
use. Tre net carrying amount of assets Feld under finance leases inc.uded in plart machinery. fixtures and
fittngs 1s £51.785,0CG0 (2021 £51.534.000 ) Included in netwaork assets is a provision of £1.023,600 for
opsalee equipment and deve!opmen

The Company had no tangble assets at 30 June 2022 (2021, none}

Neote 26 detasis the prior penod adjustrments
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10

Unlisted
investments Total
Growp ... EO0O  £000
Co;:;nd r;et book e e . S 8 RS i o T8 oo,
At 1 Sy 2021 11,000 11,000
Adoi.ons 129452 129452
Oisp (105,600) (105, OUOJ
At 30 June 2022 35 452 35, 452
£30dune 2021 ) 10011000
Subsidiary
undertakings Total
Company Ee0 €000
cost e v ntnres . . et o s e s
At 30 Jure 2021 2. 311678 2,511,678
Adei bons 228,500 228300

SLocals
At 30 June 2022

Accumutated |mpa|rments

AL 30 Jure 2021
Hewversal of irnipaitrernts

Irripanrrme

M30Jumezoza T o

Net book value
At 30 June 2022

2539978 2539978

155,312

{193.312)

2,116,365

2,539,978

195,312
(195,312}

2 539 978
2 116 366

Detals of related underiakngs are

erts COmorise -
and 1T sﬁa”"“tf‘mg n

tre irteruor of f"Of".CbC{Iﬂg a orod

GF LN, Sled mwestrenis relaie to nvesimerts ang divestrnents in Ter do

e Croup's hodng of the mempers
- .

_Pir lire wit~ Ferr's 2ash

reclirermenis and 1o Wi hee surpls funds. Fare has a smal. charer o ding a1 3racken Tragirg Livited fom
e e Ferp's investiment o Bracken Treoing Lirited at 35 June 2022 was NIl Z0 Jure 2021 Eni
Tne d'rectors da not consider Terida P or Eracxer Trad ng wrmred w0 be subs dary urderawungs of Fermn

Tracing Limrites



Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
AL g

-

Casnarcludes cash n ~and and depcsits repayaile on dernand

Restricted cash represents cash for which the Group does not have immediate and direct access or for
wrich regulatory of legal requirements restrict the use

Group
2022 2021
o £'000. E000
;“5“;} candionand T ese2s . ivaal
Re ;_r{-_:i s N 60,592 5J 337
Cashat bank and in hand ‘ - S - o 255,415 - 172 478

~

Restricted casn s camprisad of £726,000 heid i Escrow ard £52,58€6,200 of cach held ir subsidiaries waith
Di-annual distnbuton wirgows.

The Compgany Fad a cash balar.ce of 26 422 0C0 as 2t 30 June 2022, nore of wnich was restricted (202
acne!

P
et L

Group
2022 2021
] . £’00(~)M £000
Lt SYSFRLe e e s R A AR 8 RS A5 f  T  en Er s T 5 . 533 S —— 51§5
Fael, spare Dars and consurman.ss 26,023 18,593
Property developrment Wip 156,918 73 923

The amount of stocks recogrused as an expense dunrg the year was £120,413,000 (2021 £41.212,000)

Ircluded in the fuel, spars parts and consurmabies stock value is a provision of £320.000 for unusable fuel
tock (2021 £459,000) Including n oroperty development WIP is a provision of £9828.000 for warranty anc

site spec fic provisions

There has beer nompairment recognized during the year on stock (2021 nonel No inventory has ceen

a as security for labiities (2G21: nore}

ige
The Company had na stocks at 30 June 2027 {021 nonej

aEEE by b
S s
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
1E

Group Company

frestated)
2022 2021 2022

£000 00

-

Loans and advances to cusiomors 137,662 16,128 - -
Amounts falling due within one year
Loans and adwances Lo CLustomers 223,239 369,284 - -
Trade destors 42,050 16121 392 8
Armzunts owed by related parties iInowe 24 - 2950 32,950 12,751
Ciber debtors 20,199 24,972 3,843 5008
- 6,603 2,527
54,409 6,489 - -
145,602 154 375 ize

623,161 98002 39,888

[
o
T
Juty
(o))

o
o
N
[oe]
&

£'000 5200

Loans and advarces to customers are stated et of provis oo of £13 874000 (2021 £18,195 000).

e

ad ret of provisions of £773%2.0630 (2021 212 741,000)

Frepayments and accrued ncome are sta

No nierestis charg nourts cwed Dy groug wnoera<rgs, as the cutstanding baances are unsecured

e !
and repayakie on demara (20

MNote 26 detalls the prics peniod adjustmen:s




4 | [INANCIAL STATEMENTS 3C JUNE 2022
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48 2 O T T NP
T H Ceae L B St e e [ A LT

Group Company

frestated)
2022 2021 2022

£000 £000 £000

e womn AREAE S amotedatn cost s ax o s oo mBTE T 2

Bar‘:!:{car:s ard qerdraf:fruoe _6) 87,732 47385 -
Trade crediors 58,004 23,350 76
Other taxabon and social secunty 8,161 - -
Wtrer creditors 24,362 55,506 -
frnourts due to related parties inole 24) - - -
Finarce eases (note 15} 2,428 2147 -

Dervat ve financial insiruments inoie 21 - 143 -

Accraa s ang deferred incorse 75,465 72,087 373

256,152 202089 449

a g

2021
E000

16

2.705
22,924

Group
2022
Amounts falling due between one and five years KE'OOO

LA R B E £ TR B AR

Barik loars ant overdrafts (ncte 18] 383,070

Finance @ases (oe 10) 5,899
Derivative Pnancal nstrurments (note 21 -
Other creditors

394,333

B A

2021
£000

AT R AT R B

247297
6,125
5415
258,837

Group
2022

Amounts falling due after more than five years o £'000

2021
£'0006

kB BSOS b ol M R ER

Bank loans zndg overdrafts inote 16) 573,416

Hnance ieases (note 16] 24,676

ative finar

instruments {note 24 ”
598,092

Total credgitors falling cue arer maore than one yoear 992,425

577235
24,455
42,772

644502

903,3397

The Corrpany hasz no creditors due in greater tharn one year
Amounts owed 0 related parties are unsecdred, non-nterest bearing and repayable on dermrand

Note 26 details the prior penad adjustments.
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2022 2021

Group ] Wt".‘OOO o A £ OOO )
L N‘{/PW st o o wecsesasns s 00 SRR o ¢ v . 87732 4/86
e betwesr one and five yoars 383,070 247297
573,416 577,235

o 1,044,218 Tenols

AENTS 30 JUNE 20

,-.
i

Iz

o

he Corrpany had no bank wans at 30 Jurs

The banx lcans are secured against assers of the Group with each 1oar as nels by the subsidiary sh

Interest rate 2022 2021
) ) ~ £'000 r_ oe
6 month SONIA plus 160% 429,438 430

Cedar Lrergy ana nfrastucture Limited LIBOR/EURIBOR plus 2.00% - E

Elicss Energy 2 i?g;gf;gigz%’% 30,946 34,995

Clostnergy 3 12% + 6 month EURIBOR 56,079 -

Buomerarg Energy Lerited & month SONIA plus 150% 284,348 295,344

Daring:on Poirt Solar rarm Py L mted 649% lswap rati;;ifagr‘;r; 114,026 -

watle Cnery I Lirmned 6 month SONIA plus 2 35% 85,718 103,439

{oldos FI1Y L 17% + BBSY 31,614 -

Clwva Fomes i mited Skt SON!AUEES;;EQ?Q; 12,306 -

Zested Asset Maragenant Lir Fixed rate ? 5A 43 -
T 1044218 87918

2022

Swn below

ONIA replaces LIB

r;.;d:.ec N N0 CoMmime

Finance leases

Tre futare murrrum France lease cayments

Payrients

ratimpact 1o the business

% as the effective (=terbark l[end ng rate system from 1 January 2022

2022

LE000 ,

Tre rae change

2021

£000

INOT latar thar ore year 2,428 3,166
Later than one year 4r.d not later tha 5,899 6,198
Later tha~ five yoars 76,461 72,013
84,788 81,375

> char: {51,785) {(47,609)

Carrylﬁg amount of the habllaty S - o - 33;605 - 33.766

Tre finance leases prmarly reae 1o g eaed swiding ara reslthcare eauprrert Tnere are no conungent
= Y

renewal or purchase opticn clauses. =ents uayaole ircrease by (©zal inflator, Finance leases ere

SECLYEX agaInNst i € leased sssets.

re Company had no finance leases at 30 June 2022
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B O e I SR I SN
Decommissioning (restated} {restated)
provision Deferred tax Total
€o0 . £ . K000
- 20439 20933 41372
Increase recogrised in profit and toss 21 11465 11,518
InCrease recogmsad through other corpprefensive ingome - 18,202 18,202
Irmpairmant 16 - 16
increase recogriged in fred assets 23656 - 23656
Recoghised on subs:iary acquist ons - {3.568) {3,568)
Agjustrient in respect of prior years - {5,465) (5465}
Jnwindmig of disco nt 249 - 249
Acjustment relatng to change i accountng estirate (3,373) - {5,373
At 30 June 2022 41,023 41,597 82,620
The decommissioning provisiaon s held 1 cover future obigauans 1o rewrn iand on which there are

operational wind, biomass and solar farms, to ther onginal condition The amounrts are not expected o be

utlised for in excess of 25 years
The Corngany had no provis ons at 30 June 2022

Note 26 detzis the pnor period adiustments.

L8 U arre SnOr g Dl sl e

The Croup and Company have the follow ng share capitas

Group 2022 2021
Allotted, called-up and fully paid ; £000 o »E’OQQ -
1616622 011 (2021 1498,/55,258)
Crdinary shares of £6 10 each 161,662 149,676
Company 2022 2021
Allotted called -up and fulty paid £000 ‘ fi"O'QQ”
1 5 o) 54 58

616 5.2 11 (2021 14«3 755,258] 161,662 149676

Ordinary chares of £0.10 eacn

During the year the Group issusd 1l

cons deration of £203.750.000 (2321 £2,316.695.000) was paid for the shares, gving rice to a prerm

9,86¢,754 (2021 1,501,199.278 | ordinary shares of £0.10 each for an
aggregate nominat vaiue of £11.987.000 (2021 £1E>O,12@,ff‘ 1. Of the shares issued cduring the year, total
21

L of
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

2191703 G000 118.250). Durinig the year the Group purchased = (2021 4,444 0201 of 25 own

crdinary shar ‘,fh with ar aggregate nominat value of sl (2021 [444.000; Tatal considearaion
of Eril {2021 £6.844 000) was pad for trie shares, givirg rise to a prermizm of £nl lZOEl £6,39%,000).
~Up nas adoptod predecessor accounting prmcpleg as it was formed as part of a group
N, therefore the share capital ana snare premium account are treged as if ey had aiways

Moverrents in share Capial ansing both before and afier the restruciure are reported as maovements

ir tre Group share captal
Durng he year the Company asued 113,866,754 (2021 1501 139,278 ordirary shaces of £6 10 each for an

i
aggragate nominai value of E.il, 5T 0,0 10 OF tne shares iszJed during the year, total

corsideration of £203,750.000 1 315.6%5.000) was paid for the shars gvirg rise to a gremium of
£191.764,000 (2020 £2166,575.0 he Groun purchased nid (2021 4,444,020 of its owr
crdinary shares of 2510 sach vaitlr an agarecate nomina! value of 2nd (2021 £444,55C; Total consiceraion

of Eril (2021 26 844 GO0 was pa d for the shares, oiving rise to 3 premiarm of En 1 {2021 ££,339.000)

tass of ordirary shares. There are no resinct ors on the aistrisuaon of dwviderds and the

Cash flow hedge reserve

Tre cash fiow neage reserve 15 e 1o reCcors ansatuons ans ng rom the Troup's cash fiow
hedgirg arrangaments.

Merger reserve

Tre merger reserve ar<es from the ciference betwezn the fair vaiue of the snares sswes and thre ook

values of the sucsidanes acqu reg
28
The moverrent N ro-contraling interesis was as ‘cilows

Group

Mote 2022 2021
Group £ 000 £000

T S R SISl AT B TOO TN ¢ amnrodt S L ke bR C s samartriAgy s -

ALL Jay 21,121 3,721 9570

Sale of subsidhary ardertakings and acsu s uon , ;
5 dary Jrde 195 aNG acs fu} 57 - (1.842)

s abirbutable to

. (6,622) 4,007}

(2,901) 3721
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

As at 30 June 2022 there were no cortingencies across the Groug or Company

[
o

Carrying amounts ¢ financial assets and tabilt

Group

{restated))
2022 2021
Group £000 E'000

SN N TP A AT R B

PV

Carrying amount of financial assets
Debt instrurments measurec at amortsed cost 423,150 430,556
Measured at fair value through proft and logs - 6463

54,409 -

rMeasured at fair value trrough other comrpraehensive mcame

Carrying amount of financial liabilities

Measured 41 amortised cost 1,126,563 956,384
Measured at far vaiue through ofer comprenensive income - 42772

Company

2022 2021
£000 £000

4,235 17767

76 16

Naote 26 details the pror pencao adjdstmerts
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Derivative financial instruments
The Groug's financizl risk management seeks to min'mise the exposure to marksat ris<, credit risk, lguidity
and cash flow risk, and ene gy market risk

a) Market risk
Energy market risk
Tre energ

sector s experencleg significant turbulence ard there is 2 r s that forecast ievels of ircome are
[

Y rd
not achievec N wrolesae enegy pnces, ofi-ta<e contracts or government subsidies

C nars\_)e: in Govertment policy. or regulator \f‘:%erventiom may res. tt n reducec INComMe sireams within the

Tre Groun presents its consoldated firanca. statements in sterling and conducts busress na number of

rrencies, pmc paly furo ang Australian dolias Consequently, the Grous =5 exposed 1o foregn
e

5, wh-ch affect the Qfoups ransact.onal expenses and the

[0 exchanga rate Mmovermants

earting ard net assels of It non-srering o

Tra nsactional exposures

Transactiona sosures arise from administrat ve and other expense n currencies otner than tne Group s
presentational © rrency Sierlingl Tre Group ertars in to “orward “oreign exchange conracts and fore g
exchange swaps (o miligate the exchange rate rnisk for certan foreign currency nayabies and rece’pts The
forward currency coniracts and swaps are measured ab fair vatue, which s determinec using vasuation
wonrnigues trat Lulse observable irputs The <ey nouts Lsaed in vaiung the dervatives are the forward
or GBP AL and G- ‘E JR. O 30 June 2022 the farr value of the foregn currercy

contracts was an asset of Zril {2021 £6,462 000} and a daviity of £ (2021 £143 000

exchange rgwe

Translational exposures

siance sheel rarclatonal expo

NCN-Sering oOperations inNto sterling
oy mamag@mer:t and tre potent al

o's
«charge movemert s witnin an accepiable level of risk anc
V)

theretors, tyoically, the Group's policy 1o nos to actively ~edge hese exposures

Interest rate risk
The Group has exposare te fluctuztions in interest rates on s borrowings, Where tne Grous eniers e

Ing rate nterest, a swao ar-angemeart is entered nto 1o fx s oorhige of

arrangements with flea
U’“‘“ nterest .0 order o mitigate agairst an increase in nterest rates The pornon of interes: to be fxed

cate pasis Mar can eiect whether 1o neage accodnt for nese

rdiwvidus| ransaction bass and nave electec to apply Fedge accournting for interest

swaps are based or a or raipal amoun: of trie loar facisty ard mature or trhe same gate
culsianding oterest rate swans Pave a matunly ir excess o fve years a=d me far
o E54 405 000 (2020 labnity of £42.625 000

Price risk
The Grouo s a 5107t 10 meaiumi-terr lender to the res dential property market, To the estent gt 1rere
al=

L

ievei of house or ~a: affec e propertes that the Group's loans are secured

agawrst, there § a ns< that toe Group rray ~ctrecoun itz full expesure T‘ms Is rmugated by the snorcterm
rature of the loans anc the conservative leve. of loar 1o va.we tat the Group s prepared 1o lerd at
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b) Credit risk
Custorrer credit rsk s mitigated through the Group's cred-t contro poucies, which are in place 1o ensure
tnat our customers have an approprate cred - history and are monitored on an ongo ng bass,

c) Liquidity risk

Liguigity risk are managed by ensunng rat sufficient cazh 15 ava.lable o fund continuing and future operations.

Liquidity risk anses or ban< loans 1 place across the Groap and s maraged througn careful moniicring of
coverants and senzible levels of debt Barrowing s on a long-term bas.s, whereas our revenus is received
trroughout the year, as well as interest and redermptions on our short-term wcan bock Cash flow risk is
managed throuch ongaoing cash flow forecasting to ensure receipts are sufficient to meet lizbliies as they

fail due

2 ST S

At the year eng the Croup had capital commitments az follows:

2022 2021
Group ] £000 £'000
Contractod for but not grovided mthese financial siaiements 347,254 50,156
Unarawr facintes on icans 10 Darrswens 173,600 92682

AL 30 June the Group hag total fLture min murn lease gayrnents urder non-cancellable operatirg leases
as follows

2022 2021
Land and Other Land and Other
buildings buildings
vttt B 000 virnrsene B 090 o E000 £090

o ’ s s £ B TSR 59 £ '
Mot iater than one year 8,707 661 8031 749
Latar than ane year and nio* later than five 31,627 726 30,369 1686
years
Later than fw\_e Years 95,664 - 118,932 S

135,998 157,332 2444

The Group had no other off-Dalance sheet arrangaments (2021 none).

Under sections 3244 and 4794 of the Comganies Act 2006, the parent company Fern Trading Limited has
guararteed all cutstanding liabiites on those cormpanias taking the exemption o wnich the suosidiaries list
on pages 79 7o 90 were subject 1o at the 30 June 2022 untl they are satished in full. These liakilites tota
£915m Such guaranteas are enforceable against Fern Trading Limited ty any oerson to whom any such
lability i dua.

The Corpany had no capital or other commitments at 30 June 2022
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25 ..

Or 11 duly 2022, Fern Trading Developrent Limited [FTDLU a subs diary of tre Group, suc cessi:ll'-,/ sola
Darlrngten 2ot Poldoo Pty Linmited 1o Cotopus Austalis Master Tru

on e sale

On the 1st of Decerrber 2022, the Group actured rgnts to 3 £25m Credi voucher and the aignt to use
rnobie ucenses from Trree UK, viz & Strategc C(

becorning an mobule virtual network operator.

24 G ron oo

Urder FRS 102 23 1A discios
members of 2 Group provd

ires need

=

ot be given of trans

[0}

u cruons enteraed nto Sefweer two or more
ed that

cnas whaoldy owned by
such a member
.

Currg 77334,500 (2521 £62,154,000) were cnargea to tre Group by Octoous

d party due o 15 signibcant influence over tre entity Octopus Iny

Inyestraents L

Limited was recharge iegal a~d professiona. fees totalling £23,255 (2021 £16,000) by toe Group. At The
year end, an amount of £5,500 (2021 £2159,000) was outstanding which s ncluced in rade creaitors

“ne Group iz entbied t© a preft share as a result of its INvestiment in Ter do LLF, 3 -eiated party due to key
managerrent persornel in common. in 20

-
e
[N
v
)
Qo
o
2
e
~
b
T
ko]
-
Q
bty
o
(NS
I
WD
)
[
)
o
i
o
s
rm
e
=
w
2
O
]
-5
[&¥]
[l

been recogrised by tre Group Al the Jxe
£35,452.000 (2027: £11.002.300) and 2

012021, £479.000)

The Grodp ergages it lend g activities whech o s provided o reated pard Hegard ng

S Wity <ey manzgement personne! in commor, loans of £€3.490,000 (2CG21: £173 224 0001, accruesd
mcame of E19.789.0C0 {2021 226 207,000 a~d ocfered income of £n1 (2021 £101,000} were cutstaraing

atyeaz ernd Durng the year interest maome of £716C.000 (2027 £17.581.000) ard fees of £294,000 2070
£538 OC0) were recognised - rewation 1o these lcans

Durning the year the Grouo acqured 9 reserve power companies frem comoani
2

Investments L'muted, 2 relatec party of the corpaniss ac

Asat 30 June 2022 £ri (2021 £3,950.275) wias owed 1o the Company by Sracken Trading
party by <ey managemen: personnel in coraron

Cther than the ransact ons disclosed acove to 05Ny 5 Other related party tranzachors were wiih its

wholy ownes wubsidiary rmertbers ©

ir e coirion of the direciars, triere is o winmate cortrailing carty or carert company
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
L S I 1O U R L U

a) Group structuring review

We have conaucted a review of prior years’ accounting treatment of intercompany restructur ng In this
review management idenufied unamortsed gocawill balances i relation to these transactions We have
adjLstad the previous years to refiect the implemeniaton of amortisat:on backdaled fo when the relevant
transactions occuread, The accumulated immpact for the goodwill amorisauon i the proft and loss for 2020

Was

r
L
nurnzess. A sammary of e impact of the correctan is provided below

87 (20200 £5.3my) the movement of 22 7m has boen restated throughout tne 2021 comparative

Year ended Adjustments Year ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated} {restated)

Group Eoo0 ... EO00 . EO00

Goodwll 583,588 (5.335) 578,653
Retained eanngs 41,185 5.335 46,520
Year ended Accumulated Year ended

30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
(as stated) (restated)

£'0060 £'000

(£.049) 554,662

Retained earnirgs (123.920) 8,049 (115871

As part of tre review of the intergroup restructiunng mertioned above, management identfied one of the
restructures had been incorrectly accounted for in a sub section of the groug. No further errors were
discovered i tne review Tne accumulated ‘mipac: for goodwill amortisation in tne profit and loss for 2021
was £2.5m (2020 £1.3m), tre rmovement of £1.2m has been restated throughout the 2021 comparative
numbers Thes impact to the 2020 opening retaired earnirgs was offset by £2 I written back against bad
debt expenses Management bave corrected the (dentifed error with the follow:ng impact

Year ended Adjustments Year ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2020

(as stated) {restated)

Group .. E000 . £000 £'000
Goodwil “iezoss (20189 554,305
Retaired earmnings 41,185 899 42,084
Dentors 842549 {2.724) 833,825
Creditors arncunts falling due within one year {232,813) 456 (232,317}
Fixed assets 1,346,655 30,512 1377167
Year ended Accumulated Year ended

30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021

(as stated) (restated}

Group £000 wwi’OOO ~ £'000
Goodwil 602711 (27.963) 574748
Retained sarmings (123920} (3213 (124,241
Debtors 600,726 (2,724} 528,002
Credirors armounts fatfing due within cne year (207.318) 496 (206,822)
Fixed asscts 1,551,170 30,512 1.581.682
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b) Deferred tax adjustment
We have conducted a review of alt consolidat.cn entries at subsec ¢ the group We have idenuhed an
arrcr relating ¢ 2019 when deferren tax adpstments ware enternc as a ro%oi;dation entry and had

subsequenily not bean reversel We have “ked the tax per subs.diary accolnt and have ersured that the

retevant balances are correct, The error was posted at a conseadated evel onty and nas now beer corrected:

Year ended Adjustment Year ended
320 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) (restated)

Group £000 £000 £'000

T T i T T T T e UL UEPENCU TR TR LCER RIS Y

Retaned eannings 41,185 {4,764 36421
Creditons amourts fahing cus with -~ ona year (#32.813) 4764 (228,049)

Tris has a knook effect imie June 2021, the restated balances are as folows

Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2021 30 June 2021
{as stated} frestated)

E£'000 £000 £'000

6 EERIB L RBRTE R HA e SR eks Ao i RS He B 5 s 0 abes Ah 4w e n a e a0

Retained earnirgs {123,920) (4,764} (123.684)
Credilars amouns fal ng due wilnir oneg yea (207,318) 4,764 202,554}

In pfepar‘r*“ the tax computationrs far 2022 the Group's tax advicors have not:ced an overlcoked

O

FssLMgIch ir previous yvears tax consclicdat on calculauons. With o the grevicusly urreccgnized geferred Tax
assels Fela with in the group some were availzlie on a corsolicated evel 1o offsei the Group's ceferred tax
! r naividual compary basis the deferred tax in orevicus years had ceen correcily recogrised, A
ese deferred assets are i relation to cash “low hedges hels witnin the group wh.ch are accoures
for within ot~er comorehersive income The aocLmulated inrpact for the tax cnarge n the profit and logs
for 2021 was £15m (2020 £15 3} the movement of 300k has been restated throughout the 2021
comparative mumb

arg

Asumimary of the rmpact of the corecton s arovided below

Year ended Adjustment Year ended

30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) (restated)

Group £ 000 £'000 £'000
Recained earrings 41,185 {15,299) 25,886
Cash “lovs hedge reserve 63,837 {2.875) 59,962

Deferred tax provis 136,484} 19,174 (17,310)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
{as stated) (restated)
Group £'00C £'000 £'000
Cash flow bedge resanve 17098 (2,119} 14,5979
Deferred tax provisions {38,145) 17,212 (20,933)
Summary of prior period adjustments:
Year ended Adjustment Year ended
30 June 2020 30 June 2020
(as stated) (restated)
Group ‘ . o £'000 £000 £'000
R@K\an‘;d&rtmwﬁam e S e 41;8‘ PEPErs - 27,356':“
LAz odwilt 583,988 {34,517} 549471
Cebtors 842,544 (2,724) 839,825
Fixec jssets 1,346,655 30,512 1377167
Deferred tax prov sions (36.484) 19,174 (317310
Cash flgw negge reserve 63,837 (3.875) 59,962
Credinors armounts falling dug within one yoar {732.813) 5,259 (227,554)
Year ended Accumulated Year ended
30 June 2021 adjustments 30 June 2021
{as stated) {restated)
Group - o ) £000 ~ £'000 i £000
Rt‘fa\”;ﬂ(‘rnﬁg; < AR ATy et (12‘129) P,
Goochwili 602,711 (36,011} 566,700
Dentars £00,726 (2,724} 568.002
Fixed assets 1551170 30,512 1,581,682
Deferred tax provisions (38,145) 17212 (20,933%)
Cash fow hedge reserve 17,098 (2,119} 14,979
Creditors amounts talting due within one vear {207,318} 5,259 [202,059)




Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

a) Reserve Power acquisition

On 2 July 2077, the Group acy

1es through the purchsse of 100% of the share capital

for consiceration of £18.

o, the fair value of the assets acauires,

Cask —

5

Total consideration -

Details of the fair valee of the net assets acquires ana goodwi. ansing awe as ‘cilows

Book value Adjustments Fair value
. — £000 £000 £000

80,788 {28,553} 52,235

Trasle and other recenables 254 - 254

Prepavyrments €35 - 635
Cash anc cash equivalents 7HE5E - 7558
Trade ana oirer cregiers {2,206; - 12,208)
Loans _ o (58.816) - (58.814)
Net o 285 (28553 -

Gaodwill -

Met assets ééqz;ifed ) 3 ) 28,553

Total consideration -

Gocdw il resuitng from the Gusiress comuoiraticr was 7l
Tre consol dates statement ¢f comiprorensive noome for tne year includes £45 803,000 revenue ad a

2
profr afier tax of £686.000 :n respect of this

QuUISITon
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

b} Doveryard Limited acquisition
n 22 October 2021, the Groun acgured Daveryard Limited and itz subsiciary through the purchaze of
100% of the share caual for consideranan of £13.414 000

The following fabies surrmarise the conziderauoen paid by the Group. the fair vaiue of assets acquired and

labitties assumed at the acquisition date.

Consideration £'000

B S e O I

Casn 12,377

o _ N 1037

Total consideration 13,414

U SR

Oirecty attricutable costs

Details of the fair value of the net asses acqurad and goocw [l arising are as follows

Book Adjustments Fair
vatues value

‘ . o £000 £'000 £000
Fixed assets 569 - 569

Trade anc ather recevaoles 52 - 52
Prepayments and accrued income 193 - 193
(467) - (467)

Trade and otner credsors

Net assets acquired 347 - 347
Gooawl 13,067

Totat coﬁsiﬂeration 13,414

Goodwill resiting from the ousness combination was £13,067 000 and nas an estimated useful life of 25
vears, reflecting the hfespan of the assets acguirad

The consciidated statement of comoprehensive income for the year includes En:l of revenue and a loss
bafore tax of £123,000 in resgact of s acquisition.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

c) Dulacca acquisition
T Z7 Adgust 2021, the Group acqured Dutacce WF Holdeo PTY L

na its three suesidiaries through the
purchase of 100% of the share cap™al for consieeraton of £115,680.000.

a
J
Tre following tabies sumimar se the consiceration paid oy the Group, the far va.us of the zs<e
nd the ligolities aszume at the acquizition date A list of the entites acoured Included v rote 29
AUD'000  Exchange Rate £'000

217,557 18904 115,085

Directly attnputabic costs 1,126 18504 595

Total consideration 218683

T ) o 6Y

115,680

Cetals of the fair value of the net assets acquired and intangibie ans.nc are as fellows;

Book Adjustments Fair Book Adjustments Fair

values value values value

i AUD'ODO‘ ___AUD'O00
Fixed & TTozess T T ovess T S60s - 56,93

Trade and cther recovables 10,131 - 10,131 5,357 - 5,357

lash and cash equivalents 163.072 - 103072 54,525 - 54 525

and deferred come 10,952) - {10,952} 15,793} - {5,793}

ket hEA B R s AR

Net assets acquired
Irtargible 8739 4,654
Total consideration 218,683 115,680

AUD'000 £000  £000 £000

200884 - 209,884 111026 - 111,026

Intangibles resuling from the assel purcnigse was £4,654 000 and has o~ estrnated Lsefu. | fe of 3% years,

reflecting

4]

lifespan of the gssets acquirecd.

Tre consoldated staternent of comprehensive income for the vear :nciudes £rit of revenue ard 4 loss after

I al)

tax of £237 000 in rospect of this acquistior
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

d) Zestec Asset Mangement Limited acquisition
On 31 Jaruary 2021, the Group acguired Zestec Asset Mangernent Limited a project sources for rooftop
solar, thmough tne purchase of 1C0% of the share canital for consiceration of £4.765 000

The folovang tables summarise the conzideration paid by the Group, the fair value of assets acquired, ang
liabitties assurmed at the acquisition date

Consideration g'ooo

[t S YA e o £ R B B <m0 D N 3 2 AR RS £ 1 ¢ 1L 11 AELNS 300 S s s s £ e s € e B RaEE  rins
Cash 3672
Deferred consideration -

Cirectly atnbuzole costs 1,093

Total consideration 4,765

Detans of the far vaiue of the net assets acquired and goodwill arising are as follows
& C 9

Book Adjustments Fair
values value

£000 £000 £000

[r— SRR AR g 0 S5 S B 1S T TS N B 0 N a t T B S PRRABE b KRR B AR A R

Fixed assets *56 - 156

Grade ang niaer credions (574) — {574}
Trare and omer roce vables 400 - 400
Cash and cash equivalerts 1.019 - 1.019

46] - (46}

Other loars

Net assets acquired 955 - 955

3,810
Total consideration 4,765

Goodwil. resulting from the busiress combimation was £3 810,000 and has an estimated useful e of 10
years, reflecting the estimated lifespan of the assets acguired

The conscidated staternent of comprehensive income for the year mcludes £198,000 of revenue and a loss
before tax of £494,000 in respec: of this acquisiion.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

e) Etivia Homes acquisition
On 22 May 2022, tne Group acaured Elva Holdings L mites arno its subsidiaries, through
100% of the share capital for considaration of £°

Tne following tables sumirrarse the considerato™ paw oy the Group, the “ar vaue of assets acqured, and
|

Labiities assumed a7 the acouisitor date A lst of the entlies acquired zre mcluced o note 235

Cons;deratlon
Cﬁf,h

Total cons:deratmn

Detats of tre fair value of the net assets acquired ara goodwil ansing are as 0iows

Book Adjustments

values
) £ 000 £000 )
Irtangible asscts 11,767 -
Eiletatd 59939 -

Trade and other depiars 2609 -

Cash ana cash equivaients 11,603 -
Accruals and deferred incorme 1420 -
Frovisiors (930) -

Defarred tax 5,060 (1,400}

31,533 W'Wa:;lo'd)'

;ovdW\H

Total cormderatlon

11,767
69,939
2,609
11,603
(420
(930
4,600
169453)

30,133

1551
31,684

Goodwill resuitng from tre business comboiratior was £E1L551.000 and ras ar estirated usefu e of

years, reflecung tre Wfespan of the assets acquired.

Tne corsoldaten

profit cefore tax of 21 S00 i respect Of trus acauisner

=ns ve ircome for The year Inciudss revenue of £25 024.000
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022
e & I S S oL NI L PLURIE S SaF SRR PN S

Qur reported results are prepared in accordarae with Uniteg Xingdom Accountmg Standards, irclucing

Financial Reporting Standaerd 102, as detailed in the Finaricial Statements starting on page 35 of tne Annual

Regort. I measuring our performarce, the finrancial measures that we use include tnose that have beer

derived from cur reported results in order 1o eliminate factors that d'start year-on-year comgarnsors [nese
are considerad non-GAAP finzncial measares

Net debt
We provide net dept ir acddition @0 cash and gross debr as 3 way of assotong our overall cash posinon and 't
1s computad as fol.ows

2021

S Note ) E'0G0
e o e g
Cther If‘ar‘g 14, 1% 5,364 -
Grossdebt 7 T ioa9582  gii918

11 (256 415} (172 478)

Netdebt - . 793 167 699 440




Earnirngs before interest, tax, depreciation ard amor

day 1o day coeralons of the Groug We orovide

rmance without tne effecis of firar

The ‘ollow.ng taple deal's the adustments made ot

P P T

Profit/{loss) for the financial year
Adae

Aragrisaron of irtanigible assots
Frpalrrant G Intang bl assers

Ceprecat

or of tangihle ass
Irtercst payable and sircilar excansgs
Lrceptional items

Tax

Ircorre frorm other fxeg assat nvestmons
Shara of operaling proit in jont venture

Proft or dispass’ of subsidianes

rieres recerable arnd simiar noeoine

EBITDA

e AR B o o T TR Ca e gsanaaes gh

o

TS 30 JUNE 2027

iisation ("EBITDA" s calculats

n
ESITDA ir additen to

cing and capiat expendii

=3

e reported resuns

2 37,849
B 7913
2 101,802
& 33554

1105
7 16,294

(5,249)

(29,537}

5 (130}
194,916

(restated)
2021

ISR B S s

(31.012)

37704
84697
36,067

8,349

(449)
(L755]
128.568)
(957)
104,036

£000

—=
&
9]
~t
e
1)
(93}

details the prior pencd adjustnents
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

29 oL

Detaills of the sunsid-ary undertakings are as follows

»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»»» :

Abbots Ripton Solar Crergy Holdirg Limited™

Adaiinda So.ar SPY 1 Limited™
Agrisol-z SARL?

Al Newworks Lirmited™
Alpamnts Fhre Limiteg®

Auchencarroch Erergy Limiteds®
Adgumrie Land Company Limitegd'™
Avenue Sotar Farm Limrited™
Banbury Fower Limitad”

Bat soiare 5 SARLS

Batisoiare 7 SARL?

Beetloy Enorgy Lim ted”
3eighton Energy Lirmited”
Beinneun Wird Farm Lid”™
Belhouse Energy Limited”

Birchk Estate Scuar Limited™

Blaby Solar Farm Limited™

BNRG 1OW Lirmited™

Bolami Energy Limited™
Boomerang Energy Limited
Boreas Energy Limited”

Bratton Flem.ang Limited™

Breck Solar Limited™

Bryn Yr Odyn Sclar Developments Holdings
Lirmted™

Beyn ¥r Odyn Sclar Developments Limited™
Bury Power Lirmited”™

Cadorton Reserve Fower Limited”™

Caicias Energy Limites™

Cark Limited®

Country of Class of Principal
jpfﬁmgyation shares Holding activitiw 7
UK 7 Ordinary i00% Helding éompany
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
France COrdinary 10C% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Holding cormpany
UK Ordinary  100% Qfgjﬁ&ork
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 160% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 1067 Energy generation
K Ordinary 100% Energy generation
France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
France Ordinary 100% Holding company
LK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 1060% Dormant company
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
LK Ordinary 1007% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
LK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 1007 Holding company
UK Crdinary 100% Holding company
UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
LUK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
3K Grdinary 100% Holding company
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Ireland Ordinary 100% Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of
Caswell Solar Farm Limiteg™ UK Ordinary
Cathkin Energy Lirmted®” UK Ordinary
Causiigey wmniteg™ UK Crdinary
Cedar Erergy and Infrastruciure arnitec UK Ordinary
CERE Berceronne SARLT France Ordinary
Ezidtiio(;jcwe de Preducton d Erergie de France Ordinary
CEPE de |3 Saesse SARLY France Ovrdinary
CE=t de La_orr‘\b-(\ .(Certragh_e Eoil\f‘”mme‘rfe France Ordinary
Froductic Energ e ce Lacombel 5ARI
CFPE da Marsarire 2AR. France Ordinary
France Ordinary
France Ordinary
France QOrdinary
France Ordinary
UK Crdinary
Chispon Soiwr Farm Holdings Limited™ UK Ordinary
Chittering Sciar Two Lim ted” UK Crdinary
Cilgweyn Energy wimeted” UK Ordinary
Clanr Farms Lirapted” UK Ordinary
Claramond Solar SPY 1 Umited™ UK Ordinary
CL” Devenpments Lirmnited LK Ordinary
CL2 Erwwrogas Lmited” UK Qrdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdmnary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary

ORI B Ak v

Holding

JR A% R

100%
100%
100%
100%,
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
1G0%
100%
100%
160%
100%
100%
100%
160%
100%
100%
100%
1060%

Principal
activity

B F RS e [T

Energy gereration
Ernergy generation
Energy generation
Holding company

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy gereration
Energy generation

Energy gereraticon
Energy generat.on
Energy generation
Energy gereration
Holding company
Energy generation
Haolding company
Energy generation
Darmant company
Energy gereration
Energy generation
Dormant company

Provision of O&M
services

Cormant company
Dormant company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation

Energy gereration
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principat

Name . . Incorporation shares  Holding activity
CLPE RGC - 3A Limited” UK Ordinary 1807 Energy generation
CLPE RGC - 4 Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
CLPE RGC - 44 L-mited™ UK Crdinary 160% Eneray generation
Cyne Sower Lirmted” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Coisterwortn Energy Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Erergy generation
Cornon Bricge Erergy Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Coteshach Energy Limmized™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Cour Wird Farrr Scotand) Lirmted ™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Cragnelt Farr Cimited” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Crayfern Fomes (South Coast) Lim:ted LK Crdinary 100% Eﬁ\(sgl?;r[;gz(ii
Crayfern Limiteg!? UK Ordinary 100% Constﬁgction O,f

domestc buldings
Crayfern Suriey (Sinfola) Limited®! UK Ordinary 100% Ejr;fg;;ij:gi
Crayrarse Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Cress'ng Solar Farm Limiterd” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Culvery Pawer Limitec”™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Cynon fower Lirmted™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Bafer: Reserve Power Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Cairy House Solar Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Ceepdsle Farm Solar Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Doveryard Limsted™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
DCrapess Farrn Lirmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Ciilacca Erergy Project Ca PTY Lid*? Austratia Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Dulacca Erergy Project FinCo PTY Lig'? Australia Ordinary 100% Holding company
Dulacca Energy Project Holdeo Co PTY Lig™ Australia Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Dulacca WF Holdoo PTY Ltd?*? Australia Crdinary 100% Holding company
Cy®ryn Brodyn Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Eakring Limited™ UK Qrdinary 100% Holding company
Elecsct Camaraue SARL France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Elecsol France 7 3ARLY France Ordinary 90% Energy generation
Elecsol France 11 SARL® France Ordinary 80% Energy generation
Flecsol France 15 SARL? France Ordinary 100% Energy generation

Eecsol France 12 SARLY Frarice Ordinary 100% Energy generation
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A Er b ] S R S b e TR FR R e O

Zlecso: Haut Var SARL?

Elios Energy z France SAS?

Flios Energy 2 Lim ted

Elios Energy 3 France SASY

Eucs Energy Howmngs 2 Limited ™
Elos Erergy Hoidings 3 Limited™
Elios Energy Hodings Limited™

Ehos Renewabte Energy wirmited”

Elvia Developrasnt F nance Limiied

Elivia Holdings Lirmited

Elvvia kormes (Cenrall Limited™?

Eiivia Homes [Dormant 25 Limeceatt

Elivia Hornes (Grange Read) omiteg™

Eliviz Homes | Viimritedtt

Flvia Hormes (Southern) Limitea ™!

Flwvia Formas Surbron) Jrmitedt

Eliva —orres Lirp e !

Elivia foorin Lire ced™t

Elivig Soutn Lmited™”

sl

Country of Class of
incorporation shares .
france Crdinary
France Ordinary
France Crdinary
France Ordinary
Frarice Cirdinary
France Ordinary
France Crdinary
UK Crdinary
France Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK COrdinary
UK Ordinary
Crdinary
UK Deferred
Preterence
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary

Holdi

JEE e

100%
100%
160%
100%

1C0%

100%

100%

Principal
ng activity
: Energy gereration
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Erergy gererat:on
Energy generation
Holding company
Holding company
Holding company
Helding company
Holding company
Hold:ing company
Holding company
Construction of

domestic buldings

Financial services
hotding companies

Construction of
domestic buildings

Construction of
domestic buldings

Construction of
domestic buildings

Developrnent of
building projects
Construction of
domestic bulldings

Construction of
domestic buildings

Development of
pullging projects

Development of
pulding projects

Construction of
domestic buildings
Buying and selling of
own real estate

Construction of
dormestic buldings

R R e+ T
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal
Name incorporation shares Holding actw:ty

e BUTRE S MR YRR AVER R Y e A R B B LEEREE B S

Constructeon of
domestic buildings

Elivia Southern Limnited* UK Ordinary 100% Buying and selling of
own real estate
Elicomoe Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Energy project
Enerqy Power Resonrces Limited” UK Ordinary 100% gﬁ?ﬁ;gigggi and
services
EPR Ziy Limitea”™ UK Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
PR cye Limied” UK Ordinary 106% Energy generation
EPR Glanford Limiited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
EPR Renewable Enargy Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
EPR Scotand Limited®™ UK Ordinary 106% Energy gencration
EPR Thetford Limited™ LK Ordinary 10G% Energy generation
t.calyptus Energy Howdirgs Limited™ LK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Eutalyptus Erergy Limited” LUK Ordinary i00% Holding company
Fettwell Energy Limited” UK Qrdinary 10G% Energy generaton
Fern Energy Cour Baldings Lmited™ UK Ordinary 106% Holding company
Fern Energy Foidirgs Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Fern Energy Lirited™ UK Qrdinary 100% Holding company
Fern Energy Wind Holdings Limited™ UK Ordinary 160% Holding company
Fern Fipre Limited™” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Fern Hearncare Holdmgs Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Hotding company
Fern Infrastructuce L'mited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Fern Renewalsle Energy Limitad™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Fern Rocftop Sclar (A) Limited™ LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Fern Rooftop Solar (BED)™ UK Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
Farn Roofrop Sclar (Zestec) Lirnited™ UK Ordinary 100% Fnergy generatior
Fern Trad ng Development Limied” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Fern Trad'ng Group Limited UK UK 100% Holding compary
Fern UK Power Sevelopments L-mited™ UK Qrdinary 100% Holding company
Fibrophos Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Supply of fertiliser
Faur Burraws Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation

Fraisthorpe Word Farm Limired™ UK Crdinary 100% Erergy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

TR ¢ © 7 TSR A e 47 VR

Garlaff Engrgy Lim teg®

Giganet Fibre Lte”

Giganet Limnited”

Glericha™ber Wind Energy Limited =™

Crange Wind Farn Limited”
Guardinde 52 z.o0 o
Harbourne Powar Limiteg™

Hayrmaker (Mount M) Ltd™

Hayrmaker (Natewood) Acldings Limited”

Hayrnaker (Natewsod, L™

Hayrmaker (Oaxards; Holdings Limited”

Haymaker (Gaklands) Ltd™
Helm Powaer 2 Limited™”

Helm Power Limitad™

Higker <napp Farm Limited”
Hill End Farm vimitedg”
Hotlarmoor Lmitea”

Hull Reserve Power Limited™”
Hursit S5V 1 Linnited™
Immanghare Power Lirated™
iryveil Power L tee”
Jameson Yoad trergy Limited”
Jurassic Fiore Holdings Limiten™

Jurgesc ribre Limited
Hiln Power Lim ted”
Larigar Power Limiied”

arm Sclar Liritad™

=

L

List

2 T Sclar Limited™

Littleron Soar Farm wmited”

LLU Communicancrs Lud™

Loddon Power U ied™

Country of

incorporation  sh

SLPERERT¥AARRRARE P

UK

UK

UK

UK
UK
Poland
UK
LK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
UK

UK

. UK

UK
LK
UK
UK

UK

UK

Class of

Ordinary
Ordinary

Crdinary

Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Qrdinary
Craginary
Ordinary
Qrdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Orchinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
1G0%
100%
100%
100%
100%

%
160%
1007%
100%
100%

160%

Principal

Fibre network
production

Fibre metwork
production

Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generat:on
Energy generation
Energy generation
Haolding cormpany
Energy gereration
Holding company
Energy gerneration
Helding company
Holding carmpany
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generat.on
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company

Fibre network
production

Energy generation
Energy gereration
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Fibre netwark
production

Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal
G e s st o incorporation shares . Holding activity ...
Lovedean Lirmited” A LK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Luminance Solar Liraiteg™ UK Ordinary 10G% Energy generation
M12 Sclutions Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Manston Thorne Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Marck Energy Lirnited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Marden Power Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Mariey Thatch Solar Lirated™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Meadows Farm Limnited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Methourn Solar Lmited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Melton LG Snergy Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Melton UG Holding Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Melton LG ROC Limited™ UK Ordirary  100% ?;i:;fj;mg
Meltor Renewable Tnergy (=oldings) Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Melton Renewabie Zrergy Newco Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Melton kenewabe tnergy UK Limied UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Mill Hill marm Solar wimiced™ UK Qrdinary 100% Energy generation
Mirgay Farm Holding Limited™ LK Ordinary 100% Holding company
MP Decay Lid™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
MER Strete Ltd™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
MR Tregassow Limmited™ LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
MTS Halchiands Sclar Lig™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Nevern Power Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
New Row Farm Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Mewiands Soia Limited™ UK Grdinary 100% Energy generation
Ninnis Farm Limmted™ LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Naorth Perrott Fruit Farm Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Naorthwich Power Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generation
Motos Energy Limited™ LK Crdinary 100% Holding company
Ognore Power Umited™ LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Cidhall Energy Recovery Hodings Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Orie Ashford Healthcare Limited UK Ordinary  89% Sgﬁgiewices
Ore Harfield Hospital Limited UK Ordinary  90% Provision of

healthcare services
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Name

hhaksadinn

Cne sare Partn

ers Lirnived

Crrta Wedgehitl Solar Holdings Lirnited™
Cria Wedgen:l Sclar Lmited™

Palfreys Barton Limred™

Parciau Hodmgs Lmited™

Parciau Lirmnited”

Park Zroadbanc cmited’

Fesrmat Soar 2 Lid”

Picrtord (Cordaover Arfieid & Stockbaron)

Limitex™

Fitts Tarm Uimnited ™
Pornos Solar Umited”
Pyrng Lane Solar Lig™

Queens Pa-lk Road Energy Lirnited™

Rargeford Care Lirited”
Rangeford Chertsey Limited”
Rangeford Cirencesier Limitea’™

Rangeford Doreng Limited™

Rangeford Hodings Lirmad”

Rangeford Pickenng Lirmited™

T]
i\
3

o
m
T
O
a

0

Rargeforg Staoletord Lirmrad”

Teloy Power Limites”

SEF Fbre Cvaten®

L TRIRERES gmtanan ¥ FTRSEERS daeseoio ] PV CRHUMO b ER ke ¢ e 1

Retirermeanst Living Holdings Ltg™

Country of

UK
UK
UK

UK

UK

UK

UK
UK
UK

UK
UK
UK
UK
UK
Uk

UK
1K
UK
France

UK

UK

Class of
ghares

,,,,,, At g e L TR

Ordinary
Crdinary
Crdinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Crdinary

Crdinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary
Ordinary

Ordinary

Ordinary

Holding activity

ST

B5%

100%
100%
100%
100%
1G0%

100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
160%

100%
100%

100%

100%

100%
160%

100%

o

160%

1

0
00%
160

%
100%
100%

100%

Principal

Holding company
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation

Fibre netwcork
production

Energy gereration
Energy generation

Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generation

Care services for a
retirement village

Retirement village
developraent

Retirement village
developrment

Retirerment village
development

Holding compary

Retirement village
developrment

Retirement village
development

Holding company

Retirement village
development

Energy gereration
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Fibre network
production
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principat
Name e i o imCOrpOration shares =~ Holding activity e
Zingrag Holdngs Limited™ UK QOrdinary 10062 Holding campany
Singrug Limuted” LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Six Hills Lane tRegdae) Limnited” UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Skelorooke Energy Limited” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Slaugniergate Lmited™ LK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Snetterton Rerewable Power Fues Limited” UK Crdinary 100% ?Jeﬁpty of biomass
Snetterion Jerewable Power Holdings Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Snetterior Rerewable Power Limited™ UK Crdinary 100% Ernergy generation
Solarfi LPOR SARLY France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Sclarf P01 SARL” France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Sotarf P02 SARL® France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Solarfi £P04 SARLY France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Sclarfi S#05 SARLS France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Sclarh 5P08 SARL® France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Solarfi SP10 SARL® France Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Southcormbe Farm Limeted” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
St Asaph Power Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Stesdfast Parkhcuse Sclar Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Sreadfast Ruage Solar wtd™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Steadfast Shipton 3earger Solar Lirmited”™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Stetlar Power Limited™” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Stoneyrill Energy Limitag? UK Ordinary 100% Dormant compary
Subis Energy Limited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company
Summerston Energy Limited®™” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Suniey Crayfern Lavant LLP'* LK NA 50% NA
Swish Fiore Contractung Limized® Uk Ordinary 100% ;irt?arde-ur;rif(\;vnork
Swish Fiore Limitec? UK Ordinary 80% Hotding company
Swish Flore Networks Lidg® UK Ordinary 100% zirtgrgur;?cv)vnork
Swish Fibre Services Limited® UK Ordinary 80% ;'{tgsuﬁgfrk
Swish Fibre Yorkshire® UK Ordinary 100% Fiore network

production

Swish Trading Limited™ UK Ordinary 80% Holding cormpany
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Name o oo
TGC SC‘Iar h‘/ Lrmited™
TGO Solar 107 omiten™
TLC Solar 62 L mited”
TCC Sclar 83 Limied™
The Fern Power Compary Limited™

The Holkes Soar Farm miled”

Trnoresny Estate (Budby) Lirm wed”™
Tillingham Power Limited™
Todhitis Energy Lirmited™
Tradown Farm Lign ted”
Tlrves SGiar Lamited”
UKSE 15 Solar Limpted™

Linited Minas Energy Linted”
WOSE L™

Victona Solar Limiteg™

Voners Energy Lir e

Vitrf Limited™

Wadsweack Grean Lrited”™

Wadawic< Gresn Property Se i

Warrngtor Power Liited™

=

Warer &3 SGlar Park Houdimgs Lirmed™

Watenos Soar Park o teg’
Week Farn 2 L™ ted™

Westwood Power Lmyed™

Westwood Solar Liruteg™

ok b R A AR Y s T

T =k i rf/‘[f'-' -

Country of Class of
mcorporatlon shares

UK Oroxnaw
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
LK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
UK Qrdinary
France Ordinary
France Crdinary
France Ordinary
France Ordinary
UK Ordinary
USA Ordinary
UK Crdinary
K Crdinary
UK Ordinary
UK Crdinary
LK Ordinary
UK Ordinary
LK Ordinary
UK Ordinary

Holding s
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
160%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

160%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

Principal
actl\nty

Energy ger\erat.on

Energy genaration
Energy generation
Energy generation
Holding company
Energy generation
Energy generat:on
Energy generation
Enargy generation
Energy generat.on
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Fibre netwark
production

Energy genreration
Holding company

Fibre network
production

Energy gerieration
Energy generaton
Energy generation
Energy generaticn
Halding company

Fibre network
production

Retirernent villags
operator

Service charge
acrinistrator

Ernergy generation
Haolding company
Energy generation
Energy generation
Energy generation

Energy generation
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Country of Class of Principal
Name __incorporation shares Holding ‘activity
Wetherder tnergy Limited™” UK Ordinary 100% Energy gémnération ;
Wharf Power Limiteg™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
Whiadon Farm Lirmited” UK Ordinary 100% Erergy generaticn
Whinney Bl trergy Linmted™ UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation .
Wincelle Soar Holdings Lirited™ UK Ordinary 100% Holding company I
Wolvernampton Power Ltd™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Nryde Croft W.nd Farre Limared'3” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
WSE Bradford Limiteg” UK Ordinary 100% Fnergy generation
WEE Hullavington Holdings Linied” K Ordinary 100% Holding company
WSE Huliavington Limted” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
WIE ark Wal Liriten” UK Ordinary 100% Energy generation
WEE “yde Drove Limmited™ UK Crdinary 100% Energy generation
Zeciec Assel Maragerment Limited™ UK Crdinary 1007% Energy generation
Acquired after year end Date
Fern Rooftep solar @8D) Lirmeed 0910812022
Cuckoo Interret Lid 31/08/2022
Vitrify Digital Limiied 1340712022
40f Limited 22/11/2022

P tat=

Subsidaries exempt from audit by virtue of 54804 of the Corrpanies Act 2056,
TSubsidianes exermnpt from guchs py virtue of s479A of the Compan.es Act 2006
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Dnssolved or soid durmg the year and up until sngnmg

Bﬁ rpeun Ha l’*\mq grrwued

Ridge wWird Acquisition Lirmited

Fern Energy RicgeWind Acguisiticns Linried
Fern Encrgy RiageWnd Holdings L mitec
Fern Energy Sarnershios Holdings Lirnited
Frassthoroe (Holding) Lira ted

Y Oldnall Energy Recovery Limites
CormmiZl d
Darlirgton Point Howoo Pty Limmited
Carlingten =wirt Solar Farm Py Limmited
Darlington raint Subnaideo Pty Limited
Norgic Hower 5 "“J""""“)f"“—‘[“" Lirmites
Yoyrimkangas Wind Farm Oy

Saunamaa W rd rarm Gy

Date

et Sxrrbbrcmco w T T s e e e e s R bk ka e e

20/G7/2021
20/G7/2021
14/09/2021
21/09/2021
21/09/2021
29/03/2022
13/09/2027
15/09/2022
C8/07/2022
08/07/2022
08/07/2022
23/12/2021
23/12/2021
23/12/2021

s above is ar

e registerec affce of il companies os
excapt for those sel cut below:

Iul Grzytowska 2/29, 0G-131 Warsaw, Poand

2. Pinsent Ma s LLP Capra. 3g.ar
3 1 West Regent Street, Glasgow, G2 TAF

4. zzoru= Alpr de Neuwvilte, 75017 Pans, France

4l

Tre Carriage House, Staton Works, St

Zone ingustr el

12 Saisblry Place, London, Erglara, WIH 1FR]

[ I )

<. 58 Mornson Stree

Oir Froor, 35 Folbore, London, Zngland, SCLN 2HT

o, Edinburgh, Scotlang, EH3 5B°

Gtn rloer, 2 Grand Caral Sguare, Dullie 2, D02 As42, 1reand

verdor, Warwickshire, Unred Kingdom, CVIE 8PE

e do Courting 115 Rue Du Moure'et 84000 Avignor, brence

S The Corporatvor Trust Corr pany, Corporation Trust Center, 1209 Trange Street, Wil ~gtor 13501
inited States
L0, dth Foor Saitire Court, 20 Taste Terrace, Edinpurgh, Scotara, 41 2EN

210 Apoilc Bouse, Merc Ly Park Wycomoe Lane, Waoco
12, Level 23, 101 Colne Streel, Meoourne, Victer.a, 3
4 7-8 Stratford Jace, Longon, England, WiC LAY

The direciors pelieve tnat tne car

~ Larne, Kings _angley. detorasire,

ry g value of the investments is suppcerted

are Greern, =gk Wycomos, Trglard, HR10 GHH

o

D00, Adstrais

W04 BLR

by tme s underly rg net assers



5| APPENDIX = SHARE PRICE PERFORMANCE (UNAUDITED)

Fern's share price has performed in line with targets

Ferny Traging limired is an urlisted company. Every montn, our Beard of Directors agrees a prag at which ¢
wiill be wiling w0 issue new shares, The share price 1s unauded,

The figures below Include the share price cf the previous parent inow Fern Trading Group Lirmiedy as wetil
as thic enfity,

Share price growth since inception: Fern Trading Limited

19
18 e
17 w,f"“*yw

16 ———

o
15

o
14 NM”M%
13 o
e
12 e
11
10

2012 2013 2014 2018 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Performance ‘s calculated cased on the sale price for Fern's shares at 2 June each year, The sharc gnce s
rot subject 1o aud't by Emzt & Young LU=

Annual discrete performance

Financial Year Discrete share price performance
June 2021-22 9.91%

June 2020-21 l4.87%

]un@ 20*920 e e e e e el i e 033% ......
Jure 2018-19 6.23%

JJI’1‘3 20‘647 i N 7 R 7 5.54%

sune 2015-16 3.83%

June 2013-14 3.72%

e 20‘15,1‘3 . . o e e . 397%

June 2011-12 - 1.02%

Saurce Octopus Investments Limited, 2 June 2022
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6 | COMPANY INFORMATION

Directors and advisers

Directors i Reglstersd office

PS Latham Bt Flocr, 33 Holoor,
KJ Widey P oLongon, Engiand ECIN 2HT
RPC Barlow :

T Arthur lappoicted 1 duy 2022) Poingeoentlent guditors

Company seoretary Pl

Octopus Company Secreianal Services Lmied ! 16 Bedforn Street,
, ! 2e R BTZ 707
Company numbey

12601636

Forward-iooking statements
.

; Annwal Report contans certain forward-looking statements r d o the Comipany's future Dus

and financia perfarmance

= and future ovents or developmeris These slatermerts are based or the cur-ent
it

[Re]
knowlegge and exnectatians of management anc are subect to assurmplucns, riexs and ancerta nties, some

of wrich are related to fact
be

activities shoud not be tsken @s a represenialon that sdon trenas or act vities wil continue in the fulure Past

ors thal are beyord the cortro! of the Company. Accordingly No assurance Car

&N that ary particular expeciation will be et and forward-looking statements regarding past rend

(>3

performance cannot be relind on as a guide (o fulure perorrance Nothrg nthis Annaal Repart shaud be

cnstrued az a prot ‘crecast




